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1ision

Be a preferred investment bank enhancing value
for the stakeholders and contributing to the
National goals.

Mission Statement

Contributing through innovative financing and
investment in quality portfolio, advisory services
delivered in an environment of trust and
customer confidence supported by a team of
professionals.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 29th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of First Credit & Investment Bank
Limited will be held on Friday, October 26, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. at PIIA (Pakistan Institute of International Affairs)
Auditorium, Aiwan-e-Saddar Road, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on October 27, 2017.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company together with the Auditors'
and Directors' Reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2018.

3. To appoint the statutory auditors for the year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration. The present
auditors M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, retire and being legible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment.

SEPECIAL BUSINESS.

4. To obtain consent of the shareholders in terms of SRO 470 (1)/2016, issued by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan for transmission of the Annual Reports including the Annual Audited Accounts,
Notice of the Annual General Meeting and other information contained therein of the Company either
through CD/DVD or USB

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

@‘%
Muhammad Amin Khatri
Company Secretary
Karachi

October 4, 2018
Notes:
Closure of Share Transfer Book

1. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 16, 2018 to October 26, 2018
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar M/s. THK Associates
(Pvt.) Ltd, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi-75400 upto the close of business on October 15,
2018, will be considered in time for purpose of entitlement of shareholders to attend and vote at the
meeting.

Participation in Annual General Meeting

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to
attend the meeting and vote instead of him/her. The proxies in order to be effective must be received by
the company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. CDC Account holders will further have to follow
the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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A. For Attending the Meeting:-

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per Regulations,
shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity
card (CNIC) or original Passport at the time of attending the meeting.

b) Incase of Corporate entity, the board of Directors resolution of attorney with specimen signature
of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:-
a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per Regulations,

shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

b)  The proxy form shall be withessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC Numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

c) Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

d) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.
e) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
company.
Provision of Copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
In order to comply with the requirements of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) SRO19(1)/2014
dated January 10, 2014 those shareholders who have not yet submitted attested copy of their valid CNICs
are requested to provide the same with their folio numbers to the Company's Registrar, M/s. THK Associates
(Pvt.) Ltd. Members holding shares in CDC/ Participant accounts are also requested to provide the attested
copy of their CNICs to their CDC Participant/Investor Account Services.
Change in Address

The Shareholders are requested to immediately inform any change in their addresses to Company Share
Registrar or CDC Participant/ Investor Account Services, as the case may be.

Attendance of Meeting by Video-Link

If Members holding ten (10) percent of the total paid up capital, reside in a city, such Members, may demand
the Company to provide them the facility of video-link for attending the Meeting.

If you wish to take benefit of this facility, please fill the form appearing below and submit it to the Company at
its registered address at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the Meeting:

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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"I/We, of , being a member of First
Credit and Investment Bank Limited, holder of ordinary share(s) as per Registered
Folio/CDC Account No. hereby opt for video link facility at

Signature of Member"

The Company will intimate to the Members the venue of the video-link facility at least five (5) days before the
date of the Meeting along with all the information necessary to enable them to access the facility.

Payment of cash dividend through electronic mode

For all future dividends, SECP vide circular no. 18/2017 vide their letter dated August 01, 2017 and in pursuance
of the requirement of section no. 242 of the Companies Act 2017, have issued instructions for all listed
companies to obtain electronic dividend mandate as all dividend payments with effect from November 01, 2017
shall be paid through electronic mode only. All shareholders are requested to update their bank accounts and
provide electronic dividend mandate. The requisite is available on our Company's website www.fcibank.com.pk.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business, given in agenda items, to be
transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 26th day of October, 2018.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH CD/DVD/USB

Securities and Commission of Pakistan vide SRO 470 (1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 allowed companies to
transmit their Annual Report including the Annual Audit Accounts, Notice of Annual General Meeting and other
information contained therein, to its members either CD/DVD or USB at their registered addresses.

In terms of said SRO, consent of the Shareholders is required for transmission on Annual Report through
CD/DVD or USB instead of transmitting same in hard coy form. Therefore, Shareholders are requested to
accord their approval to comply with the requirements of the said SRO.

However, Shareholders will have option available with them to request for the hard copy free of cost at their
registered addressed subject to duly filled request Form (available on the Company's website i.e. www.fcibl.com.pk
Those Shareholders who wish to receive hard copies for all future Annual Reports shall submit their reference
in writing.

Also note that in term of SRO 787 (1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014, the Company will continue to provide
Annual Report through email to all those shareholders who have given their consent in this regard. Any change
in the email address provided earlier shall be communicated to the Company through request Form available
on the website.

All respected shareholders are requested to send scanned duly filled and signed Request Forms to the
Company Secretary at aminkhatri@fcibl.com.pk or the same can be submitted in the hard form through
courier/post to Company's Share Registrar M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S.,
Karachi-75400.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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For this purpose following resolution to be considered and, if deemed fit, to be passed as a Special Resolution
with or without modification.

"RESOLVED THAT the consent and approval of the members of First Credit and Investment Bank Limited be
and is hereby accorded for transmission of the Annual Report including the Annual Audited Accounts, Notice
of Annual General Meeting and other information contained therein of the Company either through CD/DVD
or USB, instead of transmitting the same in hard copies, to the members for future years commencing from
July 01, 2018."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive officer and Company Secretary of the Company be and
is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or cause to be taken all necessary actions to comply
with all legal formalities and requirements and file necessary documents as be necessary or incidental for the
purpose of implementing this resolution."

The Directors, Sponsors, majority shareholders and their relatives are not interested, directly or indirectly, in
the above business except to the extent of shares that are hold by them in the Company.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

Review Report by the Chairman on Board's Overall
Performance u/s 192 of the Companies Act 2017

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (the
"Board") of First Credit and Investment Bank Limited (the "Investment Bank") is carried out. This evaluation
is conducted to ensure the Board's overall performance and effectiveness for the betterment, progress and
growth in the context of objectives set for the Investment Bank. Areas where improvements are required are
duly considered and action plans are framed.

The Board of the Investment Bank has laid down a detailed performance evaluation mechanism and criteria
of evaluation duly approved by it. As per the recently conducted annual self-evaluation for the year ended June
30, 2018 and | report that:

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of approved criteria for the year was Satisfactory.

The overall assessment as Satisfactory is based on an evaluation of the following areas, which have a direct
bearing on Board's role in achievement of the Investment Bank's objectives:

1. Fiduciary Responsibility: Board members pay greater attention to their fiduciary duties as director of
the Investment Bank. They pay high importance in following standard of good practice for the conduct of
the Board. The Board performed its fiduciary responsibility with a sense of objective judgment and
independence. They have clear understanding of vision and mission of the Investment Bank and value
them.

2. Business Strategy: Board has a lucid understanding of the stakeholders (shareholders, customers,
employees, borrowers, depositors, Society at large) whom the Investment Bank serves. The Board has
a strategic vision of how the organization should be evolving over the five years. Further Board sets
benchmark, budget and targets for the management in all major areas business.

3. Compliance and Diligence: The Board members ensure that they have diligently performed their duties
and thoroughly reviewed, discussed and approved business strategies, corporate objectives, budgets,
financial statements and other reports. They have clear understanding of applicable laws and ensure their
compliance. It received agenda and detailed memoranda in sufficient time prior to board and committee
meetings. The board met frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities.

4. Monitoring of Business Activities: The Board remained informed with all significant issues, matters for
the consideration of the Board. It remained updated of Investment Bank's objectives, goals, strategies
and financial performance through regular presentation by the management. It also ensured representation
of internal and external auditors and other independent consultants. The Board provided appropriate
direction and oversight on a timely basis.

5. Diversity and Mix: The constituent of Board is a mix of required independent and non executive directors.
All directors were equally involved in important board decisions.

6. Governance and Control: The Board has effectively put in place all significant policies, sound internal
controls, risk management system, transparent and robust system of governance. This is reflected by
setting up an effective control environment, compliance with best practices of corporate governance and
by promoting ethical and fair behavior across the Investment Bank.

Chairman
Karachi: September 29, 2018

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the 29th Annual Report of the First Credit &
Investment Bank Limited (the FCIBL) alongwith the audited financial statements and Auditors' Report thereon,
for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Economy Review

The Fiscal Year 2018 witnessed political uncertainty that continued till the end of FY18 in the run up to the
elections. The country's economy grew in a 13-year high GDP growth of 5.8% for FY18 compared with 5.3%
for FY17. This, however, was overshadowed by weakness in the external sector due to resurgence of twin
deficits of current and fiscal accounts. Large Scale Manufacturing increased by 6% YoY on the back of improved
energy supplies and better law and order situation. Private Sector Credit grew by 14.7%.

The foreign exchange reserves held by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) declined from USD 14.6 billion as of
June 30, 2017 to USD 9.8 billion as on June 30, 2018. Consequently, the PKR exchange rate against USD
depreciated by 16% YoY holding out at PKR 121.5 / per US$ against PKR 104.8/ per USD in FY17. The
weakness in Balance of Payments was driven by rising Current Account Deficit which grew by 43% YoY to
reach USD 18.0 billion compared to USD 12.6 billion last year.

Though the inflation and Discount Rate did not increase significantly during FY18, however, based on factors
contributing to evolving economic challenges such as (i) the multiplier-effect of a strong fiscal expansion during
second half of FY18 is likely to offset the contractionary impact of monetary tightening in recent month on
domestic demand for credit; (ii) higher international oil prices; (iii) rising inflation projections and the ensuing
fall in real interest rates; and (iv) a notable reduction in PKR and US interest rate differential, the Central Bank
increased the policy rate by 100 basis points to 7.5% on July 14, 2018. The Consumer Price Index and Core
inflation for June 2018 was at 5.2 and 7.1 percent respectively.

During the year under review, the KSE-100 index witnessed 10% YoY correction to close at 41,911 points. The
benchmark index realized a high of 47,084 points and also witnessed a low of 37,919 points (reflecting an
erosion of 9,165 points (-19%)). The dismal performance is mainly attributed to 1) Weakness in
Balance of Payment and mounting Current Account Deficit, 2) Political uncertainty during the year in the wake
of political upheavals and General Elections 3) Foreign outflows, and 4) Rupee devaluation.

Financial Results

Financial results of the FCIBL for 2017-18 are summarized below, comparative data for 2016-17 has also been
provided:

(Rupees in ,000)

2017-18 2016-17
Total revenue 102,649 79,945
Operating profit before provisions 16,569 7,543
Profit before taxation 15,802 11,720
Profit after taxation 9,190 7,132
Shareholders' equity 733,093 723,948
Deficit in revaluation of investments (10,843) (8,021)
Total assets 1,327,363 1,155,308
Earning per share-basic and diluted (Rs.) 0.14 0.1

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Review of Operations

Despite unfavorable conditions for the NBFC sector particularly for investment banks due to liquidity concerns
and uncertain political & economical conditions in the country, the FCIBL as always stood to its sustainable
footings. Most of the investment banks are continuously facing serious problems in terms of liquidity, profitability
and viability. The FCIBL was, however, successful in maintaining its liquidity and viability. During the outgoing
year the FCIBL has not only increased its focus on its core business activities but also explored untapped
market of Investment Banking which contributed to the increase in earnings. Despite the difficulties being
faced, the FCIBL was able to maintain all its financial indicators. The total income of the FCIBL for the FY18
showed a significant increase of 28% to Rs. 102.6 million from Rs.79.9 million in FY17. The FCIBL reported
Operating Profit of Rs.16.6 million for FY18 against Rs. 7.5 million reported for FY17 showing increase of Rs.
9.1 million. Further, after taking effect of provision made and reversal / recovery against already provided
classified portfolio the FCIBL reported Profit before Tax of Rs.15.8 million for the financial year ended June
30, 2018 against Rs. 11.7 million for the previous year. Similarly, Profit after Tax for the year ended June 30,
2018 was Rs.9.2 million against Rs.7.1 million for the last year. Hence, FCIBL recorded overall improvement
in performance and profitability during the year.

Similarly on the Balance Sheet side, the shareholders' equity increased to Rs.733.1 million as at June 30,
2018 from Rs.723.9 million as at June 30, 2017. The increase in shareholders' equity was on account of profit
for the year. Total assets of the FCIBL increased to Rs.1,327.4 million as at June 30, 2018 from Rs.1,155.3
million as at June 30 2017. The assets increased due to bank loans and borrowings.

To comply with the NBFCs Rules and Regulations, an amount equivalent to 20% of after tax profit has been
transferred to the Statutory Reverse.

Changes in Status to Non Deposit Taking Investment Bank (Minimum Equity Requirement)

During the year under review, your Board of Directors has opted the status of Non Deposit Taking Investment
Bank of the FCIBL w.e.f. July 01, 2018 and consequently the FCIBL has met the Minimum Equity Requirement
as prescribed under the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations 2008.

Changes since Balance Sheet Date

There have not been any material events or changes that occurred subsequent to the date of the Balance
Sheet that require adjustments to the enclosed financial statements, except those which have already been
made or disclosed.

Dividend

Dividend policy of the FCIBL in the past has been a mix of offering attractive cash dividends, bonus shares
to the shareholders, improving its credit rating and allowing the availability of adequate funds to meet its
investment and expansion plans. The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended June 30,
2018.

Credit Rating

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited vide its report dated December 29, 2017 maintained the medium to

long-term entity rating of the FCIBL at 'A-' (Single A Minus) and Short-term rating at 'A-2' (A-Two). The outlook
of the rating is 'Stable’.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Environmental and Corporate Social Responsibility

The FCIBL is fully aware of its environmental and Corporate Social Responsibilities and is ready to support
social and environmental causes of the country. The FCIBL also maintains compliance to all governmental and
internal health, safety and the environment measures. Facilities and conducts of operations are designed in
a way that avoids risk to human health, safety and the environment.

Risk Assessment Framework

The FCIBL's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on FCIBL's financial performance

The FCIBL's activities are exposed it to a variety of financial risks, market risk (including interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. Risks of the FCIBL are being managed by the FCIBL's
management in accordance with the approved policies of the FCIBL whereas the Board of Directors has the
overall oversight of the FCIBL's risk management framework. The FCIBL's overall risk management program
focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and
provide maximum return to shareholders. The Board also carries out the overall business risk review of the
FCIBL at least on annual basis.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, the directors are pleased to report the following:

a) These financial statements, prepared by the management of the FCIBL, present fairly its state of affairs,
the results of its operations, cash flows and change of equity.

b) Proper books of accounts of the FCIBL have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

e) The system of internal control including internal financial control, which is in place, is sound in design
and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the FCIBL's ability to continue as a going concern.

9) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in
the listing regulations.

Key operating and financial data
The key operating and financial data of the FCIBL for the last six years is as under:
Year ended June 30 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Restated  Restated
Rupees in million

Total revenue 103 80 99 81 60 93
Profit/ (loss) before taxation 16 12 65 29 4 (14)
Profit/ (loss) after taxation 9 7 44 23 1 (6)
Shareholders' equity 733 724 77 673 649 651
Total assets 1,327 1,155 1,012 693 738 838
Earning/ (loss) per share (Rs) 0.14 0.11 0.67 0.35 0.02 (0.10)

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Staff Retirement Benefit Schemes

Value of the investment of Employees' Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund as at June 30, 2018 were Rs.9,690,101/-
and Rs.4,075,440/-, respectively.

Board of Directors
The current composition of the Board is as follows:

Total number of Directors:
(a) Male: 8 (including the appointed CEO)
(b) Female: NIL

Composition:

(i) Independent Directors: 3
(i) Non-executive Directors: 4
(iii) Executive Directors: 1*

* The Executive Director is the President and CEO whose appointment is on contract basis.

During the year two casual vacancies were occurred on the Board due to the resignation of Mr. Wajahat A.
Bagai and Mr. Anwar-ul-Haq as director. The Board appointed Mr. Rehmat Ali Hasnie (appointed on August
26, 2017) and Mr. Muhammad lkram Khan (appointed on July 11, 2018) to fill the casual vacancies.

During the year six (6) Board meetings were held, in which Directors' attendance was as follows:

Name of Directors Number of meetings Number of
Eligible to attend meetings attended

Mr. Rehmat Ali Hasnie

Mr. Anwar-ul-Haqg

Mr. Asad Ullah Saleem

Mr. Naveed Asghar Chaudhry
Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin
Mr. Muhammad Igbal Hussain
Mr. Muhammad Ameen

Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Ali

DO~ DN
D OO S

Audit Committee and Internal Controls

Audit Committee of the Board comprises of three (3) Non-Executive Directors majority of which are independent
directors including the Chairman of the Committee. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been
formulated by the Board in accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations
2017. During the year four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held, in which Directors' attendance was as

follows:
Name of Directors No. of meetings No. of meetings
eligible to attend attended
Mr. Muhammad Ameen 4 4
Mr. Anwar-ul-Haqg 3 3
Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin 4 4

First Credit And INvestment Bank Lrd.
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HR and Remuneration Committee

Board constituted its HR and Remuneration Committee to assist the Directors in discharging their responsibilities
with regard to selection, evaluation and succession planning of key management personnel / Board. The
Committee consists of four (4) members. Majority of members are Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman
of the Committee is an Independent Director. During the year two (2) meetings of HR and Remuneration
Committee were held, in which Directors' attendance was as follows:

Name of Directors No. of meetings No. of meetings
eligible to attend attended

Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin
Mr. Asad Ullah Saleem

Mr. Naveed Asghar Chaudhry
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Ali

NN NN
NN NN

Risk Management Committee

Board constituted its Risk Management Committee to assist the Directors in discharging their responsibilities
including risk identification and its mitigation/management measures in respect of company's business activities.
The Committee consists of four members majority of which are Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman
of the Committee is an Independent Director. During the year three (3) meetings of Risk Management Committee
were held, in which Directors' attendance was as follows:

Name of Directors No. of meetings No. of meetings
eligible to attend attended

Mr. Muhammad Igbal Hussain
Mr. Asad Ullah Saleem

Mr. Naveed Asghar Chaudhry
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Ali

W www
W www

Director's Remuneration Policy

The Board has put in place Director's Remuneration Policy. As per the policy, all Non-Executive Directors are
entitled to receive fee for attending meetings of the Board, its Committees or shareholders at rate fixed by the
Board of Directors from time to time. The remuneration of the Executive Directors and CEO are determined
by the Board of Directors. As per the policy all expenses incurred by the Directors for attending the meetings
will be borne by the FCIBL at actual.

Training Programs

The directors have been provided with copies of Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange,
Memorandum and Articles of Association, NBFC Rules 2003 and NBFC & NE Regulations 2008 and they are
well conversant with their duties and responsibilities. The FCIBL meets necessary requirement of Directors
Training as stipulated in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 as more
than 50% of the Directors on the Board of the FCIBL have certification under Directors Training Program (DTP)
form institutions that meet the criteria specified by the SECP.

Auditors
The present auditors M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible
offer themselves for re-appointment. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance the Audit Committee

has recommended the appointment of M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, as auditors
for the year ending June 30, 2019.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Emphasis of matter in Auditor's Report

Auditors of the FCIBL in its Report to the members has put an Emphasis of matter in respect of Deferred Tax
which is explained in detailed by the Management in note no. 11.1 to the Financial Statements. Auditor's
opinion is not qualified in this respect.

Pattern of Shareholdings

The Pattern of Shareholding including Categories of Shareholders of the FCIBL as on June 30, 2018 is annexed
at the end of the annual report. During the year, no trade in shares of the FCIBL was carried out by the Directors,
CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children, except as those reported in pattern
of shareholding.

Future Outlook & Strategy

We are vigilant for expansion of our business focusing on existing core business as well as diversification into
new businesses as permitted under the NBF regulatory framework. Our vertical as well horizontal expansion
strategy will increasing revenue streams, which hopefully will be forthcoming with improvement in economic
and business conditions of the country. Your Company would endeavor to restore reasonable quality of its
assets, improve its infrastructure, build capacity through training of existing personnel and hiring key professionals,
diversify products and services, and updating policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the new
challenges and opportunities.

Acknowledgement
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President & CEO Director
Karachi

September 29, 2018
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the board of directors of First Credit and
Investment Bank Limited (the Investment Bank) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations..

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the boared of directors of the Investment Bank.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Investment Bank's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Investment Bank's
personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Investment Bank to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the board of directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Investment Bank's corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Investment Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the board of directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the board of directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have
not carried out procedures to

assess and determine the Investment Bank's process for identification of related parties and that whether the
related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Investment Bank's compliance, in all material respects, with the

requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Investment Bank for the year ended June 30,
2018.

Karachi “Qma\j WJ& /)'w,u /wéwv—

Date: September 29, 2018 Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Khalig-ur-Rahman
Engagement Partner
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

First Credit and Investment Bank Limited
Year ended June 30, 2018

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are Eight (8) (including the appointed CEO) as per the following:
a. | Male Eight (8)
b. | Female NIL
2. The composition of Board is as follows:
a) | Independent Directors 3
b) | Other Non-Executive Directors
c) | Executive Directors 1*

*The Executive Director is the President and CEO whose appointment in on contract basis.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies
where applicable).

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which

they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the

Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. More than 50% of the Board is compliant with the requirement of Directors Training Program.
10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant

requirements of the Regulations.

1. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Mr. Muhammad Ameen Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Member
Mr. Anwar-ul-Hag* Member
*resigned on April 28, 2018

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Chairman
Mr. Asad Ullah Saleem Member
Mr. Naveed Asghar Chaudhry Member
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Ali Member

c) Risk Management Committee
Mr. Muhammad Igbal Hussain Chairman
Mr. Asad Ullah Saleem Member
Mr. Naveed Asghar Chaudhry Member
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Ali Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee 4 Meetings were held during FY 2017-18
b) HR and Remuneration Committee 2 Meetings were held during FY 2017-18
d) Risk Management Committee 3 Meetings were held during FY 2017-18

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. Rahman Sarfraz Rahim Igbal Rafiq
Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and
are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

b

MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN

President & CEO Director
Karachi

September 29, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FIRST CREDIT AND
INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of First Credit and Investment Bank Limited, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018 and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Investment Bank's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss,
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Investment Bank in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

" Note 11.1 to the financial statements in which, the management of the Investment Bank has described
their assumptions and estimates affecting deferred tax asset. Our opinion is not qualified in respect

of this matter.
Key Audit Matter (s)
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Key Audit Matters
1- Valuation of investments

Investment Bank's investment comprises investments
in capital market and money market. As at June 30,
2018 total net investments amount to Rs. 154.04
million.

The valuation of these investments might not have
been made using appropriate valuation techniques
particularly those for which there are no active market.

The Investment Bank's accounting policy and
movement in the year in the investments balances
are disclosed in note 4.3, 7 and 13.

2- Provision for non-performing finances

The assessment of provision of non-performing
finances provided to customers involves significant
judgment and use of management assumptions both
subjectively and objectively. The identification of the
provision and the determination of the recoverable
amount involve various assumption and factors
including the financial conditions of the counter party,
timing and amount of expected future cash flows
including the forced sale value (FSV) benefits on the
securities pledged.

The Investment Bank records provision objectively
based on Schedule X of Non-Banking Finance
Company and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(NBFC Regulations) and subjectively based on
adequacy of security inclusive of realizable value,
financial positions and credit worthiness of the
customers and other evidences of impairment.

The Investment Bank has loans and finances-net as
at June 30, 2018 amount to Rs. 373.5 million as
disclosed in note 8.2 to the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investments were addressed by:

- Evaluated the design and implementation of key
control around investments;

- Re-performed valuation to assess that investments
are carried as per the valuation methodology
specified in the accounting policies;

- Performed purchases and sales testing on sample
basis of trades made during the year and checked
that transactions were recorded in the correct
period;

- Checking the existence of the securities from the
Central Depository Company's report;

- We also reviewed management's assessment of
whether there are any indicators of impairment
including those securities that are not actively
traded; and

- Furthermore, we also assessed the adequacy of
the respective disclosures relating to investments
as disclosed in the financial statements.

Our audit procedures include the following:

- We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of
design and implementation of key controls related
to the credit approval process, post approval credit
management, loan grading system, collateral
monitoring and loan impairment assessment.

- We adopted a risk based sampling approach. We
checked the customers' repayment behavior and
evaluated the Investment Bank's loan classification
taking into consideration the credit committee
reports, customers' financial information collateral
valuation report and other available information.

- We assessed the adequacy of the provision for
loan losses by testing the key assumptions and
calculations for loss allowance calculation as
required by NBFC Regulations, 2008 and
management's assumptions.

- Furthermore, we also assessed the adequacy of
the respective disclosures relating to Loan and
finances stated in the financial statement.
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3- First time application of Third and Fourth
schedules to the Companies Act, 2017

As referred to in note 3.1 to the annexed financial
statements, the Third and Fourth Schedules to the
Companies Act, 2017 became applicable for the first
time for the preparation of the Investment Bank's
annual financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2018.

The Companies Act, 2017 (including third and fourth
schedules) forms an integral part of the statutory
financial reporting framework as applicable to the
Investment Bank and amongst others, prescribes the
nature and content of disclosures in relation to various
elements of the financial statements.

As part of this transition to the requirements of the
said Third and Fourth schedules, the management
made amendments in disclosures required in the

Our audit procedures include the following:

- Considering the management's process to identify
the necessary amendments required in the
Investment Bank's financial statements.

- Evaluating the results of management's analysis
and key decisions taken in respect of the transition,
using our knowledge of the relevant requirements
of the Third and Fourth Schedules to the
Companies Act, 2017 and our understanding of
the

Investment Bank's operations and business.
- Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of

the additional disclosures and changes to the
previous disclosures made in the annexed financial

Investment Bank's financial statements. statements based on the new requirements.
We consider it as a key audit matter in view of the

extensive impacts in the financial statements due to

the Companies Act, 2017

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,

2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Investment Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Investment Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Investment Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

" Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Investment Bank's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Investment Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Investment Bank to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Investment Bank as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement
with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Investment Bank's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Khalig-Ur-Rahman.

Karachi "Q"—J Ww\ /)'WM %(/QW

Date: September 29, 2018 Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 5 5,856,334 2,696,763
Intangible assets 6 - 45,345
Long-term investments 7 39,977,939 70,946,154
Long-term loans and finances 8 351,899,754 122,508,535
Net investment in finance lease 9 647,265 1,150,017
Long-term deposits 10 57,500 57,500
Deferred tax asset 1 72,957,425 75,289,761
Total non-current assets 471,396,217 272,694,075
Current assets
Current portion of non-current assets 12 59,860,172 70,648,188
Short-term investments 13 84,147,138 60,210,585
Short-term placements 14 430,000,000 464,000,000
Markup/interest accrued 15 59,296,138 59,793,143
Prepayments and other receivables 16 1,240,033 1,194,377
Taxation-net 12,346,934 7,461,830
Cash and bank balances 17 209,076,400 219,306,001
Total current assets 855,966,815 882,614,124

Total assets

1,327,363,032

1,155,308,199

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Cotpt (- o

MUHAMMAD AMIN KHATRI MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN
Chief Financial Officer President & CEO Director
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' equity

Authorized share capital

75,000,000 (2017: 75,000,000)

ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 750,000,000 750,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 18 650,000,000 650,000,000

Statutory reserve 19.1 134,582,762 132,744,837

Accumulated loss (51,489,845) (58,797,060)
Total shareholders' equity 733,092,917 723,947,777
Deficit on remeasurement of investments - net 20 (10,842,766) (8,020,695)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred liability - Staff gratuity 21 2,430,419 5,807,435
Long-term loan 22 125,000,000 187,500,000
Security deposit against finance lease 23 333,400 333,400
Total non-current liabilities 127,763,819 193,640,835
Current liabilities
Short-term running finance facility 24 402,137,807 165,601,569
Current portion of long-term loan 22 62,500,000 62,500,000
Markup / interest accrued 25 7,022,701 8,282,205
Accrued and other payables 26 5,688,554 9,356,508
Total current liabilities 477,349,062 245,740,282
Total liabilities 605,112,881 439,381,117
Contingencies and commitments 27

Total equity and liabilities

1,327,363,032

1,155,308,199

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Cotpt (- o

MUHAMMAD AMIN KHATRI MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN
Chief Financial Officer President & CEO Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Income from term finances and funds placements
Income from investments

Fees and commission income

Other income

Finance cost

Administrative and operating expenses

Operating income before provisions

(Provision) / Reversals

Reversal of diminution in value of long-term investments

Un-realized gain on re-measurement of investments
classified as held-for-trading

Impairment in investments classified as available-for-sale

Profit before taxation and workers' welfare fund

Workers' welfare fund

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earning per share - basic and diluted

Note

28
29
30
31

32

33

7.5

34

35

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Crtpt

—_—

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
89,724,660 66,886,940
7,427,031 11,067,818
3,587,143 572,596
1,910,429 1,418,007
102,649,263 79,945,361
(44,924,081) (25,850,773)
(41,156,555) (46,551,555)
16,568,627 7,543,033
2,550,000 5,309,038
- 1,096,958
(2,994,203) (2,000,000)
16,124,424 11,949,029
(322,488) (228,981)
15,801,936 11,720,048
(6,612,312) (4,587,950)
9,189,624 7,132,098
0.14 0.11

MUHAMMAD AMIN KHATRI
Chief Financial Officer

MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI
President & CEO

MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees

Profit after taxation 9,189,624 7,132,098

Other comprehensive income:

Components of comprehensive income not
reflected in equity:

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss
account subsequently - net of tax:

Unrealized (loss) / gain on re-measurement of available-
for-sale investment (2,822,071) 2,503,754

Comprehensive (loss) / income for the year transferred
to equity

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit and loss account - net of tax:

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 21.7 (44,484) (140,161)

Total comprehensive income for the year 6,323,069 9,495,691

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

—_—

—_
MUHAMMAD AMIN KHATRI MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN
Chief Financial Officer President & CEO Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 15,801,936 11,720,048
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5 1,617,640 1,642,646
Amortization 6 45,345 109,507
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (330,848) (1,240,000)
Gratuity expense 21.6 &21.7 622,984 889,439
Dividend income 29.1 (840,851) (872,732)
Finance cost 32 44,924,081 25,850,773
Provision for non-performing investments 7.5 (2,550,000) (5,309,038)
Impairment in investments classified as available-for-sale 2,994,203 2,000,000
Unrealized (gain) on held-for-trading investments - (1,096,958)
46,482,554 21,973,637
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 62,284,490 33,693,685
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Prepayments and other receivables 16 (45,656) (303,352)
Markup/interest accrued 15 497,005 (12,571,395)
451,349 (12,874,747)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 26 (3,667,954) (8,354)
Security deposit against finance lease 23 - 333,400
(3,667,954) 325,046
Cash generated from operations 59,067,885 21,143,984
Income tax paid (9,209,564) (5,741,150)
Dividend income received 840,851 872,732
Gratuity paid (4,000,000) -
Markup on finance cost paid (46,183,585) (19,302,607)
(58,552,298) (24,171,025)
Net cash generated from /(used in) operating activities 515,587 (3,027,041)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment 5 (5,341,759) (1,101,860)
Proceed from disposal of property and equipment 895,396 1,240,000
Long-term investments - net 43,660,601 (1,631,458)
Short-term investments 13&13.3 (24,801,301) 79,566,143
Long-term finances-net (233,194,363) (83,616,861)
Net cash used in investing activities (218,781,426) (5,544,036)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term loans paid/(received) | (62,500,000)| | 60,000,000 |
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (62,500,000) 60,000,000
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (280,765,839) 51,428,923
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 517,704,432 466,275,509
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36 236,938,593 517,704,432

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

MUHAMMAD AMIN KHATRI MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN
Chief Financial Officer President & CEO Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Reserve
Issued, Capital Revenue Total
subscribed and Statutory Accumulated .
. Total shareholder's
paid-up Reserve loss equit
Note share capital quity
................................................ (RUPEES)....iieeeeeinniie i ceene e
Balance as at July 01, 2016 650,000,000 131,318,417  (64,362,577) 66,955,840 716,955,840
Profit after tax for the year ended
June 30, 2017 - - 7,132,098 7,132,098 7,132,098
Other comprehensive loss - - (140,161) (140,161) (140,161)
- - 6,991,937 6,991,937 6,991,937
Transfer to statutory reserve 19.1 - 1,426,420 (1,426,420) -
Transactions with owners
recognized directly in equity - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2017 650,000,000 132,744,837  (58,797,060) 73,947,777 723,947,777
Balance as at July 01, 2017 650,000,000 132,744,837  (58,797,060) 73,947,777 723,947,777
Profit after tax for the year ended
June 30, 2018 - - 9,189,624 9,189,624 9,189,624
Other comprehensive loss - o (44,484) (44,484) (44,484)
- - 9,145,140 9,145,140 9,145,140
Transfer to statutory reserve  19.1 - 1,837,925 (1,837,925) - -
Transactions with owners
recognized directly in equity - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2018 650,000,000 134,582,762  (51,489,845) 83,092,917 733,092,917

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

—_—

MUHAMMAD AMIN KHATRI MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN
Chief Financial Officer President & CEO Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1  First Credit and Investment Bank Limited ("the Investment Bank") was incorporated in Pakistan on
August 31, 1989 as a private company with its liability limited by shares under the name of 'First
Credit and Discount Corporation (Private) Limited', converted in to a public company. Subsequently,
the name of the Investment Bank was changed to First Credit and Investment Bank Limited. During
the year ended June 30, 2009, the Investment Bank was listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange
(now Pakistan Stock Exchange) limited by way of issue of shares to general public. The registered
office of the Investment Bank is situated at 2nd floor, Sidco Avenue Centre, Stratchen Road, R.A.
Lines, Karachi, Pakistan. The Investment Bank is an associated undertaking of Water and Power
Development Authority (WAPDA) and National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) which each holds 30.77%
holding in the Investment Bank.

1.2 The Investment Bank is licensed to undertake business of investment finance services as a Non-
Banking Finance Company under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation) Rules, 2003 ("the NBFC Rules") issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP).

The JCR-VIS has assigned the investment bank a credit rating of 'A-' long & medium term and 'A-
2' short term on December 29, 2017. The outlook of the rating is stable.

2 SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE BANK'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND
PERFORMANCE

(@) The Investment Bank has granted loans to new parties amounting to Rs.214.2 million (refer note
from 8.2.5 to 8.2.8).

(b)  For a detailed discussion about the Investment Bank performance, please refer to the Directors'
report.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(the NBFC Regulations). Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations
differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC
Regulations have been followed.

The Investment Bank has changed its status from Deposit Taking Investment Bank to Non- deposit
taking Investment Bank with effect from July 1st, 2018. Approval in this regard has also been
received from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide letter no SC/NBFC/-51/FCIB/2018
dated July 11, 2018
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The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation
and presentation of annual and interim financial statements of the company. Further, the disclosure
requirements contained in the fourth schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in additional
disclosure of management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision in the financial statement
(refer note 34.3), change in the threshold for identification of executives (refer note 33.3) and
additional detailed relationship requirement of related parties (refer note 41) etc.

The SECP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard, IAS-39, 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and measurement' and 1AS-40, 'Investment Property' through Circular No.
19 dated August 13, 2003 to NBFCs providing investment finance services. The SECP has also
deferred the applicability of Financial Reporting Standard, IFRS-7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures'
through Circular No. 411(1) / 2008 dated April 28, 2008 to NBFCs providing investment finance
services. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the
preparation of these financial statements.

3.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value and at amortized costs and retirement
benefits at present value.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Investment Bank's functional
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded
to the nearest rupee.

3.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenditures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the
basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgment made by the management in
applying accounting policies include:

(a) - Current and deferred taxation (Note 4.11 and 11.1)

(b) - Impairment and impairment of investments (Note 4.2 and 4.3)

(c) - Provisions (Note 4.16)

(d) - Staff retirement benefits (Note 4.12)

(e) - Depreciation and amortization on fixed and intangible assets (Note 4.1)
3.5 Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting

3.5.1 Promulgation of Companies Act, 2017

The Companies Act 2017, applicable for periods ending after December 31, 2017 which result in
additional disclosures and certain changes in financial statements presentation.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to
the Company and adopted in the current year

The Investment Bank has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards
and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) January 1, 2017

IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses January 1, 2017
(Amendments to IAS 12)

IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 January 1, 2017

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant
effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2018.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but
not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory
for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any
significant effect on the Investment Bank's financial reporting and operations and are therefore not
presented here.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but
not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to

IFRS 10 and IAS 28) Postponed
IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transaction (Amendments to IFRS 2) January 1, 2018
IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration January 1, 2018

IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40) January 1, 2018

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 1, 2018
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments July 1, 2018
IFRS 16 - Leases January 1, 2019
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Effective Date
(Annual periods

Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019
IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

(Amendments to IAS 28) January 1, 2019
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 1, 2019

IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(Amendments to IFRS 9) January 1, 2019

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement
(Amendments to IAS 19) January 1, 2019

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and
interpretations to the published standards on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet
notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB effective date
Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Fixed assets
Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account using the straight line method whereby the
depreciable cost of an asset is written-off over its estimated useful life at straight line rates specified
in note 5 to the financial statements. In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation
is charged from the month of acquisition and up to the month preceding the disposal, respectively.

Subsequent costs are included in the book value as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Investment Bank and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account during the year in which they are
incurred.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of property and equipment are taken to profit and loss
account.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The amortizable cost of intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life,
using straight line method at rate specified in note 6 to the financial statements.

4.2 Impairment

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable.
If such indication exists, where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount,
assets are written down to their recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is taken to the
profit and loss account.

4.3 Investments

The Investment Bank determines the classification of its investments at the time of acquisition of
investment and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis. The existing investment portfolio
of the Investment Bank has been categorized as follows:

a) Classification of investments
Held-for-trading

These are investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profits from
short-term fluctuations in market prices, interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are investments
included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists.

Available-for-sale

These are investments that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may
be sold in response to need for liquidity or changes to interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Held-to-maturity

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Investment
Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

b) Initial and subsequent measurement

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given. Cost
includes transaction costs associated with the investments. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-
for trading and available-for-sale investments for which active market exists, are measured at their
market value while held-to maturity investments are stated at amortized cost determined using the
effective interest rate method, less impairment, if any.

Any surplus or deficit on revaluation of held-for-trading investments are charged to profit and loss
account, while in case of available-for-sale investments, the resulting surplus/(deficit) is kept in a
separate account and is shown in the statement of financial position below the shareholders' equity
as surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of investments. At the time of disposal the respective surplus or
deficit is transferred to income currently.

Unquoted available for sale investments, except where an active market exists, are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Impairment of investments is recognized when there is a permanent diminution in their values.
Provision for impairment in the value of investments, if any, is taken to the profit and loss account.
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4.4 Trade date accounting

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by
the regulations or market conventions are recognized on the trade date. Trade date is the date on
which the Investment Bank commits to purchase or sell the investments.

4.5 Derivatives instruments

Derivative instruments held by the Investment Bank generally comprise of future and forward
contracts in the capital and money markets. These are stated at fair value at the statement of
financial position date. The fair value of derivatives is equivalent to the unrealized gain or loss from
marking the derivatives to market using prevailing market rates at the statement of financial position
date. Derivatives with positive market values (unrealized gains) are included in other assets and
derivatives with negative market values (unrealized losses) are included in other liabilities. The
corresponding gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account.

4.6 Securities under repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Transactions of repurchase / reverse repurchase of investments securities are entered into at
contracted rates for specified periods of time and are accounted for as follows:

Re-purchase agreements

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repo)
continue to be recognized in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance
with accounting policies for investments. The counter party liability for amounts received under
these agreements is included in borrowings from banks /financial institutions. The difference between
sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up on borrowings from banks/financial institutions and
accrued over the life of the repo agreement.

Reverse repurchase agreements

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse
repo) are not recognized in the statement of financial position. Amounts paid under these agreements
are recorded as funds placements. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated
as return from fund placements with financial institutions and accrued over the life of the reverse
repo agreement.

4.7 Margin Trading System (MTS) transactions

Receivable against MTS transactions are recorded at the fair value of the consideration given. The
MTS transactions are accounted for on the settlement date. The difference between the purchase
and sale price is treated as income from MTS transactions and recognized in the profit and loss
account over the term of the respective transaction.

4.8 Term finance / credit facilities / loans

Term finances originated by the Investment Bank are stated net of provision for losses on such
assets. The specific provision for bad and doubtful loans, if any, is determined in accordance with
the requirements of the NBFC Regulations. Loans are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of recovery.

4.9 Netinvestment in finance lease
Leases in which the Investment Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an asset to the lessees are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognized

at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed
residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in finance leases”.
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4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose
of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents’ comprise of cash in hand, balances in current
accounts with banks, short-term bank deposits, short-term placements, short-term running finance
and short-term repo borrowings.

4.11 Taxation
Current

The provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at current tax rates after taking into
account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. However, for income covered under
final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime. The charge for current
tax also includes adjustments where necessary relating to prior years which arise from assessments
framed / finalized during the year.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts used for
financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences
and tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the future and the taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences and
tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the deferred
tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been
enacted at the reporting date.

4.12 Staff retirement benefits
4.12.1 Defined benefit plan

The Investment Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees.
The net defined benefit liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined
benefit gratuity scheme, is the present value of the defined benefit obligation both computed at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. An independent actuary using the projected unit
credit actuarial cost method calculates the defined benefit obligation periodically. Last valuation
was the reporting date. Amounts arising as a result of re-measurements, representing the actuarial
gains and losses and the difference between the actual investment returns and the return implied
by the net interest cost are recognized in the statement of financial position immediately, with a
charge or credit to Other Comprehensive Income in the periods in which they occur.

4.12.2 Defined contribution plan
The Investment Bank also operates a recognized contributory provident fund for all of its regular
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Investment Bank and the employees
to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

4.13 Term financing- term finance certificates (TFCs)
Term finance certificates are initially recognized at its fair values less transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of TFCs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using effective

interest rate method. The transaction costs are also amortized over the term of TFCs using the
effective interest method.
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4.14 Finances, certificate of deposits and other borrowings

Deposits are initially recorded at the amounts of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on deposits
is recognized separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to the profit and loss account
over the period.

4.15 Return on certificates of deposit

Return on certificates of deposit (CODs) issued by the Investment Bank is recognized on time
proportionate basis taking into account the relevant CODs issue date and final maturity date.

416 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Investment Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions for legal disputes, onerous contracts or other claims are recognized when the Investment
Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Investment Bank and amounts can be
estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value
of money is material.

Any reimbursement that the Investment Bank can be virtually certain to collect from a third party
with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed
the amount of the related provision.

No liability is recognized if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is
not probable. Such situations are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the outflow of resources
is remote.

4.17 Accrued and other liabilities

Other liabilities are measured at amortized cost which equals / estimated fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for goods and services received by the Investment Bank.

4.18 Proposed dividend and transfer between reserves

Proposed dividend are transferred between reserves, except appropriations which are required by
law, made subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared / transfers
are made.

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is
approved by the shareholders.

419 Finance cost
Finance costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which these are incurred except to the
extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production

of a qualifying assets. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant
assets.
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4.20 Revenue recognition

a) Return on term finances and funds placements, is recognized on time proportion basis taking
into account the principal / net investment outstanding and applicable rates of profit thereon
except in case of classified loans on which income is recognized on receipt basis.

Interest / markup on rescheduled / restructured advances and investments is recognized in
accordance with the guidelines given in the NBFC Regulations.

b) Return on government securities and term finance certificates represents interest income
earned using effective interest rate.

c) Dividend income on equity investments and units of mutual funds is recognized when the right
to receive the dividend is established.

d) Income from fees, commission and brokerage is recognized, when such services are provided.
e) Other income is recognized as and when incurred.

f)  The Investment Bank follows the ‘financing method’ in accounting for recognition of finance
lease. The total unearned finance income i.e. the excess of aggregate installment contract
receivables plus residual value over the cost of the leased asset is deferred and then amortized
over the term of the lease, so as to produce a systematic return on the net investment in finance
leases.

g) Revenue from finance leases is not accrued when rent is past due by ninety days or more.
h) Front end fee and other lease related income is recognized as income on receipt basis.

4.21 Earnings per share (EPS)
The Investment Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Investment Bank by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

4.22 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Investment Bank becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and de-recognized when the Investment Bank loses control
of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset and in case of financial liability when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

4.23 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when the Investment Bank has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

4.24 Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Investment Bank at arm's length prices
using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.
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5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Fur.ni?ure Off ice Computers A" Vehicles Leasefold Total
& Fittings  equipment Conditioners Improvements
................................................ (RUPEES)....ciiiiirirniiiii i
Year ended June 30, 2017
Opening net book value 179,144 277,570 730,750 324,034 1,726,051 - 3,237,549
Additions during the year - - 266,220 114,940 720,700 - 1,101,860
Disposals
Cost - - - - 2,096,050 - 2,096,050
Accumulated depreciation - - - - (2,096,050) - (2,096,050)
Depreciation for the year (71,433) (89,790) (434,618) (162,246) (884,559) - (1,642,646)
Closing net book value 107,711 187,780 562,352 276,728 1,562,192 - 2,696,763
As at June 30, 2017
Cost 1,141,088 1,929,657 3,798,732 1,536,662 6,820,782 6,200,000 21,426,921
Accumulated depreciation (1,033,377)  (1,741,877)  (3,236,380) (1,259,934)  (5,258,590) (6,200,000) (18,730,158)
Net book value 107,711 187,780 562,352 276,728 1,562,192 - 2,696,763
Year ended June 30, 2018
Opening net book value 107,711 187,780 562,352 276,728 1,562,192 - 2,696,763
Additions during the year - 31,499 124,000 - 5,186,260 - 5,341,759
Disposals
Cost - - - - 3,284,880 - 3,284,880
Accumulated depreciation - - - - (2,720,332) - | (2,720,332)
Depreciation for the year (68,373) (74,359) (368,981) (53,783)  (1,052,144) - (1,617,640)
Closing net book value 39,338 144,920 317,31 222,945 5,131,760 - 5,856,334
As at June 30, 2018
Cost 1,141,088 1,961,156 3,922,732 1,536,662 8,722,162 6,200,000 23,483,800
Accumulated depreciation (1,101,750)  (1,816,236)  (3,605,361) (1,313,717)  (3,590,402) (6,200,000) (17,627,466)
Net book value 39,338 144,920 317,31 222,945 5,131,760 - 5,856,334
Annual rates of depreciation 15% 20% 33% 15% 20% 20%
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5.1 Following items of property and equipment having written down value below Rs. 500,000 each
were disposed off during the year:

Description Note Cost/ Accumulated Net book Sale Gain /
of asset sold revalued Depreciation value proceeds (loss)
amount

As at June 30, 2018 Rupees
Vehicles
Suzuki Cultus AVR-265 5.1.1 966,330 966,330 - 38,654 38,654
Toyota Corolla Gli -

AWW-074 51.2 1,597,850 1,597,850 - 191,742 191,742
Suzuki Mehran -BHE-013  5.1.3 720,700 156,152 564,548 665,000 100,452

5.1.1 This include vehicle disposed off to an ex-employee Mr. Ahsanullah Khan as per Company policy

being fully depreciated assets

5.1.2 This include vehicle disposed off to an employee Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Ali as per Company policy

being fully depreciated assets

5.1.3 This include vehicle claim received from Adamjee Insurance against total loss.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
-Softwares
Opening net book value 45,345 154,852
Additions during the year - -
Amortization for the year (45,345) (109,507)
Closing net book value - 45,345
As at June 30
Cost 2,303,930 3,753,930
Accumulated amortization (2,303,930) (3,708,585)
Net book value - 45,345
Annual rates of amortization 33% 33%
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Held-to-maturity
- Term finance certificates/sukuk - listed 71 27,500,000 57,415,276
- Term finance certificates/sukuk - unlisted 7.2 11,357,224 11,357,224

38,857,224 68,772,500
Available-for-sale
- Quoted shares 7.3 1,120,715 2,173,654
- Term finance certificates - listed 7.4 - -
Total investments * 39,977,939 70,946,154

*Total investments taken to statement of financial position at mark to market
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7.1 Term finance certificates / sukuk - listed

2018 | 2017
Number of Certificates Amortized cost
Par Value Investee
2018 2017 Rupees | | Rupees

Commercial Banks

3,995 3,995 5,000 Summit Bank Limited 711 19,915,276 19,924,464

Petroleum

10,000 10,000 5,000 Hascol Petroleum Limited 712 37,500,000 47,500,000

57,415,276 67,424,464

Less: current maturity 12 (29,915,276) (10,009,188)

27,500,000 57,415,276

711 This represents term finance certificates issued on October 27, 2011 for a period of seven years.
Markup payment are made semi annually at the rate of 6 month KIBOR+3.25% (2017: 6 month
KIBOR+3.25%). These are due to mature on October 26, 2018.

7.1.2  This represents sukuk certificates issued on January 7, 2016 for a period of six years including one
year grace period. Profit payment are due for on quarterly basis at the rate of 3 month KIBOR+1.5%
per annum ( 2017: 3 month KIBOR+1.5% per annum). These are due to mature on January 6, 2022.

7.2 Term finance certificates/sukuk - unlisted

2018 | 2017
Number of Certificates Amortized cost
Par Value Investee
2018 2017 Rupees || Rupees
Cable & electrical goods
4,000 5,000 Pak Electron Limited - sukuk - 20,000,000
8,000 8,000 5,000 "New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) limited
- sukuk (refer note 7.2.1) 38,160,166 38,160,166
Textile
5,000 5,000 5,000 Amtex Limited - sukuk (refer note 7.2.2) 18,750,001 18,750,001
Three Star Hosiery (Private) Limited - sukuk
28,000 28,000 5,000 (refer note 7.2.3) 137,000,000 139,550,000
Textile Composite
860 860 5,000 Azgard Nine Limited - TFC 4,300,000 4,300,000
Miscellaneous
10,000 10,000 5,000 Eden Housing Limited - sukuk 6,560,000 6,560,000
6,000 5,000 NRSP Micro finance Bank Limited - TFC - 15,000,000
204,770,167 242,320,167
Less: Provision for non-performing investments
(refer note 7.5) (193,412,943) (195,962,943)
"Less: Current maturity (refer note 12) - (35,000,000)
11,357,224 11,357,224
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7.21 This represents sukuk certificates issued on December 3, 2007 for a period of five years and markup
rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2.20% with a floor of 7% and cap of 20% payable half yearly. These
certificates are secured against bank guarantee of First Dawood Investment Bank Limited and ranking
charge over present and future assets of the company. This has been classified as non performing
investment by the Investment Bank under loss category and the Investment Bank has made 100%
provision .

7.2.2  This represents sukuk certificates issued on October 12, 2007 for a period of five years and markup
rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2% with a floor of 11% and cap of 25% payable quarterly . These certificates
are secured against bank guarantee of Bank of Punjab. This has been classified as non performing
investment by the Investment Bank under loss category and the Investment Bank has made 100%
provision after considering the amount received by registrar Lahore High Court in March 2011.

7.2.3  This represents sukuk certificates issued on August 5, 2008 for a period of five years and markup
rate of 3 month KIBOR + 3.25% with a floor of 11% and cap of 25%. These certificates are secured
against bank guarantee of First Dawood Investment Bank and ranking charge over assets of the
investee. This was due to mature on August 6, 2013. This has been classified as non performing
investment by the Investment Bank under loss category and the Investment Bank has made 100%
provision . The Investment Bank has filed suit to recover the amount in Sindh High Court Karachi in
year 2013.

7.3 Quoted shares

2018 2017
Number of Certificates Par Cost | Market Value Cost Market Value
Investee Company
2018 2017 | Value Rupees | Rupees Rupees Rupees
Agritech Limited
242,055 242,055 10 (refer note 7.3.1) 5,857,102 1,120,715 7,857,102 2,173,654

5,857,102 1,120,715 7,857,102 2,173,654
Less: Impairment against
investments (2,129,455) - (2,000,000) -
3,727,647 1,120,715 5,857,102 2,173,654

Less: Deficit on

remeasurement

(refer note 7.6 & 20) (2,606,932) - (3,683,448) -
1,120,715 1,120,715 2,173,654 2,173,654

7.31 This represents 242,055 shares of Agritech Limited acquired from Azgard Nine Limited as part of
multiple agreements including the Master Restructuring Agreement (MRA).These shares were subject
to restriction on transfer and were pledged in favor of Faysal Bank Limited in its capacity as the
trustee of the TFC issue under Share Transfer and Debt Settlement Agreement. During the year the
restriction on transfer has been removed and the shares has been transferred to the CDC account
of the Investment Bank.
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7.4 Term finance certificates - Listed
2018 2017
Number of Certificates Par Cost | Market Value Cost Market Value
Investee Company
2018 2017 | Value Rupees | Rupees Rupees Rupees
Textile Composite
Azgard Nine Limited
4,000 4,000 5,000 (refer note 7.4.1) 6,507,678 6,507,678 6,507,678 6,507,678
Technology and Communication
Worldcall Telecom Limited
6,886 6,886 5,000 (refer note 7.4.2) 13,221,549 13,221,549 13,221,549 13,221,549
19,729,227 19,729,227 19,729,227 19,729,227
Less: Provision against
non-performing investments (19,729,227) (19,729,227)  (19,729,227) (19,729,227)
Less: Current maturity
(refer note 12)

741 This represents Term Finance Certificates issued on September 20, 2005 at the rate of 6 month
KIBOR + 2.4%. These certificates have been restructured and rescheduled under Master Restructuring
Agreement (MRA) dated December 1, 2010, and was due to mature on September 20, 2017. This
has been classified as non performing investment by the Investment Bank under loss category and
the Investment Bank has made 100% provision of the principal amount after considering FSV of the
collateral as per NBFC's & NE's Regulations. These certificates are secured by first pari passu charge
on the present and future assets of the investee Company.

7.4.2  This represents Term Finance Certificates issued on October 7, 2008 for a period of five years. Markup
payment are made semi annually at the rate of 6 month KIBOR + 1.6%. The issue is secure by first
pari passu charge on the present and future fixed assets of the investee Company. These were due
to mature on October 7, 2015. Further, these TFCs are restructured on April 3, 2015 and due to
mature on October 7, 2021. This has been classified as non performing investment under loss category
and the Investment Bank has made 100% provision.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

7.5 PROVISION FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE OF
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Balance at the beginning of the year 215,692,170 221,001,208
Charged for the year - 1,700,962
Reversal for the year (2,550,000) (7,010,000)
(Reversal) / Provision (2,550,000) (5,309,038)
Balance at the end of the year 213,142,170 215,692,170

7.6 DEFICIT ON REMEASUREMENT OF LONG-TERM

INVESTMENTS - Available for sale
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,683,448 5,777,849
Charge during the year (1,076,516) (2,094,401)
Balance at the end of the year 7.3 2,606,932 3,683,448
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
8 LONG-TERM LOANS AND FINANCES
Loan to employees 8.1 5,988,335 5,023,957
Loan to others- term finance facility (secured) 8.2 345,911,419 117,484,578
351,899,754 122,508,535
8.1 Loan to employees
Housing loan - secured
- Executives 8.1.1&8.1.2 492,011 1,262,698
- Employees 8.1.2 2,198,588 2,495,720
2,690,599 3,758,418
Mark-up receivable on house loans 8.1.2 2,327,502 2,290,542
5,018,101 6,048,960
Other loans - unsecured
- Executives 1,705,450 -
- Employees 8.1.3 1,058,270 98,742
2,763,720 98,742
Current portion
- House loans (457,524) (1,067,819)
- Other loans (1,335,962) (55,926)
12 (1,793,486) (1,123,745)
5,988,335 5,023,957

8.11 There is no long-term loans to Chief Executive Officer however reconciliation of carrying amount of
Executives is as follows:

2018 2017
Chief Chief
executive Executives Total executive Executives Total
officer officer
................................. RuUpees........coovviviiiiiiiiiiineas
Opening balance 610,295 652,403 1,262,698 - 1,937,407 1,937,407
Disbursed 2,372,800 - 2,372,800 - - -
Transfer - - - 668,838 (668,838) -
Payment/(Receipt) (1,277,645) (160,392) (1,438,037) (58,543) (616,166) (674,709)
1,705,450 492,011 2,197,461 610,295 652,403 1,262,698

These loans and advances have been made in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2017

8.1.2 These represent loans provided to the executives and employees for purchase of property in accordance
with the human resource policy and are repayable on monthly basis over a period of 15 years. These
loans carry mark-up rate at 4% (2017: 4%) per annum. These loans are secured against mortgage
of properties.

8.1.3 These represent loans provided to the executives and employees and are repayable on monthly basis
over a period upto 3 years. These loans are unsecured and interest free.
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
8.2 Loan to others - term finance facility (secured)

Interest bearing
Gharibwal Cement Limited 8.2.1 16,720,000 21,280,000
Chenab Limited 8.2.2 14,978,125 14,978,125
Hashwani Hotels Limited 8.2.3 22,626,569 18,873,804
Tandlianwala Sugar Limited 8.2.4 98,750,000 81,250,000
Pioneer Cement Limited 8.2.5 45,854,210 -
Power Cement Limited 8.2.6 58,395,062 -
Technology Links Private Limited 8.2.7 13,333,332 -
Shakarganj Sugar Mills Limited 8.2.8 95,000,000 -
Loans to individuals 8.2.9 8,825,000 6,125,000

374,482,298 142,506,929
Non - interest bearing

374,482,298 142,506,929
Less: Provision for non-performing finances 8.2.10 (929,037) (929,037)
Less: Current maturity 12 (27,641,842) (24,093,314)

345,911,419 117,484,578

8.21 This represents term finance facility issued on September 9, 2005 for a period of ten years. Markup
payment are made at the rate of 3 month KIBOR. This was restructured on March 1, 2013 and is due
to mature on February 28, 2023. This is secured by pari passu charge over all fixed assets of the
borrower.

8.2.2  This represents term finance facility issued on January 30, 2008 for a period of five years at markup
rate of 6 month KIBOR + 3% .The facility is secured against first pari passu charge over fixed assets.
This was due to mature on January 30, 2013. The Investment Bank has classified the balance and
accordingly made 100% provision after considering FSV of the collateral held as per NBFC and NE
regulations. The Investment Bank has filed suit to recover the outstanding amount in Banking Court.
The case is still pending in the court.

8.2.3 This represents participation in syndicated term finance facility to the extent of Rs. 50 million out of
which Rs. 22.626 million have been disbursed. The tenor of the facility is six years at markup rate
of 6 month KIBOR+ 2.30% upto two principal repayments and thereafter 6 month KIBOR+ 1.80%.
Facility is secured by way of charge over fixed assets of the Marriott hotel karachi with 25% margin.

8.2.4  This represents participation in syndicated term finance facility to the extent of Rs. 100 million out
of which Rs. 98.75 million have been disbursed. The tenor of the facility is six years at markup rate
of 3 month KIBOR + 2% and the principal is repayable in 16 quarterly equal installments with 2 years
grace period. The facility is secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge over all present
and future movable fixed assets with 25% margin. This facility will be matured on March 29, 2023.

8.2.5  This represents participation in syndicated term finance facility to the extent of Rs. 100 million out
of which Rs. 45.854 million have been disbursed. The tenor of the facility is seven years inclusive
of grace period of two years at markup rate of 6 month KIBOR + 1.1% and the principal is repayable
in ten consecutive half yearly installments whereas the markup is repayable calendar quarterly. The
facility is secured against first pari passu hypothecation/mortgage charge over all present and future
assets of the Company with 25% margin.
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8.2.6  This represents participation in NBP lead syndicated term finance facility to the extent of Rs. 100
million (subsequently reduced to Rs.74.5 million) out of which Rs.58.395 million is disbursed. The
tenor of the facility is eight and half (8.5) years inclusive of grace period of two and half (2.5) years
at markup rate of 6 month KIBOR + 2.25% per annum.The facility is secured against charge/mortgage
over fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin and is repayable in twelve consecutive half yearly
installments

8.2.7 This represents providing a medium term finance of Rs.15 million which carries a profit rate of one
month KIBOR + 4% per annum and is repayable in equal 36 monthly installments. The facility is
secured against mortgage of urban property of third party having value of at least Rs.15 million and
ranking hypothecation charge over current assets of the Company with 35% margin.

8.2.8  This represents providing a medium term finance of Rs.100 million approved on April 28, 2018 out
of which Rs.95 million disbursed. The facility carries a profit rate of 3 months KIBOR + 3.5% per
annum. The facility is secured against pledge of PSX 100 Index shares with 35% margin and ranking
hypothecation charge over present and future asset of the Company with 25% margin and is repayable
in equal six quarterly installments. after grace period of 18 months. Interest is repayable in quarterly
installments.

8.2.9  This represents financing to individuals against pledge of units of mutual funds.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
8.2.10 Provision for non-performing finances
Balance at the beginning of the year (929,037) (929,037)
Reversal during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year (929,037) (929,037)
9 NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE
Lease rental receivable 891,744 1,401,312
Residual value 333,400 333,400
Gross investment in finance lease 9.1 1,225,144 1,734,712
Less: Unearned finance lease Income (68,311) (162,754)
1,156,833 1,571,958
Less: Current maturity of net investment
in finance lease 12 (509,568) (421,941)
Net investment in finance lease 647,265 1,150,017
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2018 2017
9.1 Description Not later  Laterthan Laterthan Total Notlater Later than Laterthan Total
thanone  oneand five thanone  oneand five
year less than years year less than years
five years five years
Rupees

Lease rentals receivable 509,568 382,176 - 891,744 509,568 891,744 - 1,401,312

Guaranteed residual value - 333,400 - 333,400 - 333,400 - 333,400

509,568 715,576 - 1,225,144 509,568 1,225,144 - 1,734,712
Finance charge for future

periods (55,066) (13,245) - (68,311)  (87,627)  (75,127) - (162,754)
Present value of minimum

lease payments 454,502 702,331 - 1,156,833 421,941 1,150,017 - 1,571,958

9.1.1 The Investment Bank’s implicit rate of return on leases ranges between from 9.09 % to 9.45% per
annum. These are secured against leased assets and security deposits generally upto 20% of the
cost of leased assets.

9.1.2 Lease rentals received during the year aggregate to Rs. 509,568

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
10 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposit with Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited 50,000 50,000
Others 7,500 7,500
57,500 57,500
1" DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences:
-Provisions 69,450,009 71,539,195
-Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 1,954,487 2,074,541
-Surplus on revaluation of investments 847,864 -
-Gratuity 705,065 1,676,025
1M1.1&11.2 72,957,425 75,289,761
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1.1 The management of the Investment Bank has prepared financial projections. The said projections
are based on certain key assumptions made for the estimation of future profitability. The determination
of future taxable profit is most sensitive to certain key assumptions. A significant change in the key
assumptions and estimates may have an effect on the recovery of the deferred tax asset. The
management believes that the Investment Bank will be able to achieve the profit projected in the
financial projections and consequently the deferred tax asset accounted for in the financial statements
will be fully realized in the future.

11.2 Movement in deferred taxation

Balance at Recognized . Balance at
. : Recognized
June in profit in equit June
30, 2017 & loss quity 30, 2018
........................ Rupees......cccoevvvieininnnns

The following deductible temporary differences

arising on account of:

- Provisions 71,539,195 (2,089,186) - 69,450,009
- Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 2,074,541 (120,054) - 1,954,487
- Surplus on revaluation of investments - - 847,864 847,864
- Gratuity 1,676,025 (990,024) 19,064 705,065

75,289,761 (3,199,264) 866,928 72,957,425

Balance at Recognized . Balance at
. " Recognized
June in profit in equit June
30, 2016 & loss quity 30, 2017
........................ Rupees........cccevviinnnnnen
The following deductible temporary
differences arising on account of:
-Provisions 74,223,108 (2,683,913) - 71,539,195
-Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 1,888,659 125,813 60,069 2,074,541
-Gratuity 1,377,540 298,485 - 1,676,025
77,489,307 (2,259,615) 60,069 75,289,761
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Note
CURRENT PORTION OF NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Investments

Current portion of term finance

certificates - listed 71&74

Current portion of term finance
certificates - unlisted 7.2

Loans and finances

Current portion of loans to employees 8.1
Current portion of loans to other- term
finance facility (secured) 8.2

Net investment in finance lease
Current maturity of net investment in finance lease 9

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale
Dewan Cement Limited - Pre IPO term

finance certificates 13.1
Quoted shares 13.2
Mutual Funds 13,3

Investments at market value
Pre IPO term finance certificates
Dewan Cement Limited

Less: provision
Term finance certificate - Dewan Cement Limited

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
29,915,276 10,009,188

- 35,000,000
29,915,276 45,009,188

1,793,486 1,123,745
27,641,842 24,093,314
29,435,328 25,217,059

509,568 421,941
59,860,172 70,648,188
43,069,617 43,069,617
17,350,319 17,140,968
23,727,202 -
84,147,138 60,210,585
50,000,000 50,000,000
(6,930,383) (6,930,383)
43,069,617 43,069,617

This investment has been classified under loss category and accordingly made 100% provision after
considering FSV of the collateral held as per NBFC and NE regulations.
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13.2 Quoted shares

2018 2017
Number of Shares Cost | Market Value Cost Market Value
Investee
2018 2017 Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
( The face value of each share is Rs.10/-)
Commercial Banks
70,000 50,000 National Bank Limited
(refer note 13.2.1) 3,858,395 3,315,900 2,636,846 2,950,500
10,088 10,088 Habib Bank Limited 1,813,991 1,679,047 1,813,991 2,715,084
15,000 15,000 Allied Bank Limited 1,467,750 1,547,250 1,467,750 1,344,300
Chemicals
815,800 815,800 Agritech limited 13,428,068 3,777,152 13,428,068 7,325,884
12,500 7,500 Engro Fertilizers Limited 743,005 936,375 462,900 414,300
7,500 - Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 613,539 741,675 - -
Oil and Gas
5,000 5,000 Pakistan Petroleum Limited 816,300 1,074,500 816,300 740,700
3,000 - Pakistan Oilfields Limited 1,326,319 2,015,370 - -
Equity Investment
Instruments
30,000 30,000 PICIC Growth Fund 446,248 915,300 446,248 930,000
Electricity
Kot Addu Power Company
25,000 10,000 Limited 1,512,352 1,347,750 406,112 720,200

26,025,967 17,350,319 21478215 17,140,968

Less: Impairment against
investments (864,748)

Less: Deficit on remeasurement
(refer note 20 & 13.4) (7,810,900) - (4,337,247)
17,350,319 17,350,319 17,140,968 17,140,968

13.2.1 This represents investment in shares of associated undertaking which has been made in accordance
with the requirements under the Act.

13.3 Mutual Funds

2018 2017
Number of Units Cost | Market Value Cost Market Value
Investee
2018 2017 Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
1,622,639 - NBP Stock Fund 25,000,000 23,728,338
Less: Deficit on remeasurement (1,272,798)

23,727,202 23,728,338

13.3.1 This represents investment in units of mutual fund of associated undertaking which has been made
in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017.
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Note

13.4 DEFICIT ON REMEASUREMENT OF INVESTMENTS

Held for trading
Opening balance
Charged for the year

Reversal for the year

Transfer of held for trading investments to
available for sale investments

Balance at the end of the year
Available-for-sale

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charged for the year

Reversal for the year

Balance at the end of the year

14  SHORT-TERM PLACEMENTS

Term deposit receipts (TDR)

13.2&13.3

141

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
- 2,383,841
- (1,096,958)
- (1,096,958)
- (1,286,883)
4,337,247 4,746,600
4,746,451 7,406,288
- (7,815,641)
4,746,451 (409,353)
9,083,698 4,337,247
430,000,000 464,000,000
430,000,000 464,000,000

14.1 This represents placements with financial institutions under term deposit receipts carrying markup rate

of 8.6% to 10% per annum (2017: 7.2% to 10.75% per annum).

15 MARKUP / INTEREST ACCRUED
Accrued profit/markupl/interest on:
- Term finance certificates/sukuk
- Term finances

- Placements

Less : provision for markup/interest on non-
performing investment

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
24,836,190 25,154,258
41,989,391 41,082,902
16,802,523 17,887,949
83,628,104 84,125,109

(24,331,966)

(24,331,966)

59,296,138

59,793,143
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
16 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments 1,095,965 1,194,377
Other receivable
- Dividend receivable 13,125 -
- Miscellaneous 130,943 -
1,240,033 1,194,377
17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balance with banks
- Deposit accounts 171 208,789,997 218,993,509
- Current account with State Bank of Pakistan 268,383 280,442
Cash in hand 18,020 32,050
209,076,400 219,306,001

17.1 Effective markup rate in respect of deposit accounts ranges from 3.75 % to 8 % (2017: 3.75 % to 8 %)

per annum.
2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
18 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
28,500,000 (2017: 28,500,000) Ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid in cash. 285,000,000 285,000,000
36,500,000 (2017: 36,500,000) Ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares. 365,000,000 365,000,000
650,000,000 650,000,000
19 RESERVES
Capital
Statutory reserve 19.1 134,582,762 132,744,837
Revenue
Accumulated loss (51,489,845) (58,797,060)
83,092,917 73,947,777
19.1 Statutory reserve
Opening balance 132,744,837 131,318,417
Transferred from profit and loss account 19.2 1,837,925 1,426,420
Closing balance 134,582,762 132,744,837

19.2 Statutory reserve represents amount set aside at the rate of 20% of profit for the year after taxation as
per the requirements of clause 16 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008.
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Note
DEFICIT ON REMEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENTS - NET
Available for sale
Mutual Fund 13.3
Shares-long term 7.3
Shares-short term 13.2

Related deferred tax (asset)

DEFERRED LIABILITY - STAFF GRATUITY

Actuarial Assumptions

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
(1,272,798) -
(2,606,932) (3,683,448)
(7,810,900) (4,337,247)

847,864 -
(10,842,766) (8,020,695)

As disclosed in note 4.12.1, the Investment Bank operates a funded gratuity scheme for its staff
employees. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2018 using the Projected Unit

Credit Actuarial Cost Method.

Note
Defined benefit liability recognized
in balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 21.3
Fair value of plan assets 21.4

Benefits due but not paid
Defined benefit liability recognized

Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits due but not paid

Benefits paid

Re-measurements chargeable in other
comprehensive income

Changes in the fair value of plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets

Contribution

Interest income on plan assets

Benefits paid

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
5,954,769 5,026,310
(3,524,350) (6,182,293)
- 6,963,418
2,430,419 5,807,435
5,026,310 10,640,382
533,378 799,825
397,850 519,004
- (6,963,418)
(106,358) -
103,589 30,517
5,954,769 5,026,310
6,182,293 5,922,616
4,000,000 -
371,792 429,390
(7,069,776) -
40,041 (169,713)
3,524,350 6,182,293
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Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
21.5 Movement in net liability
Opening liability 5,807,435 4,717,766
Expense recognized in profit and loss 21.6 559,436 889,439
Re-measurements recognized in other
comprehensive income 21.7 63,548 200,230
Contribution (4,000,000) -
Closing liability 2,430,419 5,807,435
21.6 Expense recognized in profit and loss
Current service cost 533,378 799,825
Interest cost 397,850 519,004
Expected return on plan assets (371,792) (429,390)
559,436 889,439
21.7 Re-measurements recognized in other
comprehensive income
Experience adjustments 103,589 30,517
Return on plan assets - excluding interest income (40,041) 169,713
63,548 200,230
Related deferred tax (asset) (19,064) 60,069
44,484 140,161

21.8 The present value of defined benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and surplus or deficit on gratuity
fund for the five years is as follows:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Rupees
Present value of defined obligation 5,954,769 5,026,310 10,640,382 9,966,985 10,222,305
Fair value of plan assets (3,524,350) (6,182,293)  (5,922,616) (6,041,285) (7,053,851)

2,430,419  (1,155,983) 4,717,766 3,925,700 3,168,454

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Breakup of Investments - at fair value
Investment in National Savings
(including accrued interest) 3,639,155 7,232,566
Investment in KAPCO Shares - 500 Shares
@ Rs. 53.91 each (2017: 72.07 each) 26,955 36,035
Cash at bank 404,239 644,323
Less: assets for Defined Contribution Scheme (545,999) (1,730,631)
3,524,350 6,182,293
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Percentage

Significant Actuarial Assumption
Discount rate used for interest cost in

profit and loss charge 8.00% 7.25%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 9.00% 8.00%
Maturity profile of Present value of defined

benefit obligation
Weighted average duration of the Present value

of defined benefit obligation (in years) 9 9

Percentage
Plan Assets Comprise
Bond 89.41% 91.40%
Equity 0.66% 0.46%
Cash and /or deposits 9.93% 8.14%
100.00% 100.00%
.- . S 2018 2017

Sensitivity Analysis on significant Rupees Rupees

actuarial assumptions:
Discount Rate +100 bps 5,454,518 4,566,135
Discount Rate - 100 bps 6,528,201 5,491,567
Expected rate of salary increase + 100 bps 6,522,620 5,486,698
Expected rate of salary increase - 100 bps 5,450,191 4,562,383

These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2018. The valuation uses the
Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method.

The Investment Bank recognizes expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2019 works out to be Rs. 0.542 million.

Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
22 LONG-TERM LOAN
From Banking Companies - Secured
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) -
an associated undertaking 221 187,500,000 250,000,000
Current portion of long term loans (62,500,000) (62,500,000)
125,000,000 187,500,000

221 The Investment Bank has obtained a five year term loan in FY-2016 from National Bank of Pakistan,
an associated company, with a grace period of one year. The loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly
installments commencing from July 2017 and carried markup @ 3 months KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum
(2017: 0.75%), maturing in June 2021. The loan is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge
over all present and future assets of the Bank.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Note

SECURITY DEPOSIT AGAINST
FINANCE LEASE 231

2018
Rupees

333,400

2017
Rupees

333,400

These represent deposit against finance lease and are adjustable against the residual value of the asset

leased at the expiry of respective lease term.

Note
SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCE FACILITY
MCB Bank Limited 241
Allied Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan -
an associated undertaking 24.2

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
302,137,856 97,899,065
- 67,702,504
99,999,951 -
402,137,807 165,601,569

This represents short term running finance obtained against TDR from MCB Bank Limited carrying
markup rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 0.6% (2017: 3 month KIBOR plus 0.85%) per annum.

This represents short term running finance obtained with a limit of Rs.100 million (2017: Nil) carrying
markup at a rate based on 3 month KIBOR plus 1% (2017: Nil) per annum. The running finance is
secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge against all present and future assets of the Company

with 25% margin.

Note

MARKUP / INTEREST ACCRUED
Mark-up accrued on:

Secured

Loans and borrowings including

running finance facility 25.1

Unsecured
Certificates of deposits

Others

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
5,462,564 6,704,533
1,560,137 1,560,137
- 17,535
7,022,701 8,282,205

This amount includes markup due to National Bank of Pakistan, an associated undertaking.
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Note  pipees Rupees
26 ACCRUED AND OTHER PAYABLES
Accrued expenses 3,327,861 6,210,203
Other liabilities 2,360,693 3,146,305
5,688,554 9,356,508

27  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
There are no material contingencies as at the reporting date (2017: Nil)

Commitments

Standby letter of credit 271 33,848,438 29,009,063
Letter of credit exposure - Pioneer Cement Ltd. 27.2 28,561,667 -
Letter of credit exposure Power Cement Ltd. 27.3 7,647,405 -

27.1 This represents the Investment Bank's share in standby letter of credit under agreement of participation
dated December 13, 2010 with Allied Bank Limited. Under the said agreement, the Investment Bank
irrevocably agrees and undertakes with Allied Bank Limited to take undivided share of 2.5% in standby
letter of credit up to November 17, 2019.

27.2 This represents the Investment Bank's participation in syndicated Term Finance L/C facility to the extent
of Rs.100 million for import of plant and machinery. Initially the facility will be non-funded and FCIBL
has recorded it as contingencies liability, subsequently upon requirement of L/C documents the payment
will be made through the facility will become funded.

27.3 This represents the Investment Bank's participation in syndicated Term Finance L/C facility to the extent
of Rs.100 million for import of plant and machinery (subsequently reduced to Rs.75.0 million). Initially
the facility will be non-funded and FCIBL has recorded it as contingencies liability, subsequently upon
requirement of L/C documents the payment will be made through the facility will become funded.

2018 2017
plote Rupees Rupees
28 INCOME FROM TERM FINANCES AND
FUNDS PLACEMENTS
Income from long-term finances 14,839,176 4,323,420
Return on fund placements with financial institutions 28.1 74,885,484 62,563,520
89,724,660 66,886,940
28.1 Return on fund placements with financial institutions
- bank balance 31,511,628 12,443,695
- term deposit receipts 43,373,856 45,781,524
- reverse repo placements - 4,152,348
- clean placement - 185,953
74,885,484 62,563,520

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
29 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Return on term finance certificates / sukuks 6,586,180 9,131,257
Dividend income on available-for-sale investments 291 840,851 872,732
Capital gain on securities - 1,063,829
7,427,031 11,067,818
29.1 Scrip wise details of dividend is as follows:
National Bank Of Pakistan - 375,000
Habib Bank Limited 55,484 162,232
Allied Bank Limited 108,750 127,500
Kot Addu Power Company Limited 227,500 90,500
Engro Fertilizer Limited 106,250 52,500
Fauji Fertilizer Limited 54,375 -
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 50,000 32,500
Pakistan Oil Fields Limited 127,500 -
Treet Corporation Limited - 10,000
Oil & Gas Development Limited 28,492
PICIC Growth Fund 82,500 22,500
840,851 872,732
30 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
Guarantee commission 437,143 416,596
Processing & participation fee 3,150,000 156,000
3,587,143 572,596
31 OTHER INCOME
Interest income on loan to employees 129,181 178,007
Gain / loss on disposal of fixed asset 330,848 1,240,000
Miscellaneous 1,450,400 -
1,910,429 1,418,007
32 FINANCE COSTS
Markup/Interest on:
- Long-term loans 15,762,629 16,146,987
- Short-term repo borrowings - 2,754,003
- Short-term running finance facility 28,969,624 6,718,342
- Other charges 191,828 231,441
44,924,081 25,850,773
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
33 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and allowances 33.1t0 33.3 20,614,712 25,824,937
Travelling, conveyance and meeting charges 3,566,675 4,211,949
Printing and stationery 400,662 521,613
Rent, rates and taxes 4,363,173 3,472,332
Legal and professional 1,210,796 1,846,665
Repairs and maintenance 641,295 712,037
Auditors' remuneration 334 954,760 862,500
Newspaper and periodicals 19,818 20,544
Postage and courier services 96,415 99,407
Telephone, telex and fax 395,805 475,159
Electricity, gas and water charges 983,710 886,613
Advertisement and business promotion 583,391 684,960
Fees and subscription 2,680,285 1,975,224
Security guards 500,732 382,800
Insurance 662,875 797,420
Brokerage and commission 58,807 91,934
Motor vehicle running expenses 1,200,589 1,196,043
Office supplies 205,536 223,645
IT support 298,884 429,898
Training 54,650 83,722
Depreciation 5 1,617,640 1,642,646
Amortization 6 45,345 109,507
41,156,555 46,551,555
33.1 ltincludes charge for gratuity and provident fund as follows:
- Gratuity 559,436 889,439
- Provident fund 500,623 547,601
1,060,059 1,437,040
Unaudited Audited
Rupees
33.2 Disclosures relating to provident fund
(i) Size of the fund - net assets 9,726,798 17,020,103
(ii) Cost of Investment made 9,690,101 16,870,887
(iii) Percentage of Investment made 99.62% 99.12%
Breakup of Investment -at fair value
Investment in National Savings 8,472,685 9,591,940
Deposit with NBP NIDA Account 1,217,416 7,278,947
9,690,101 16,870,887
Percentage of Investment
Investment in National Savings 87.4% 56.9%
Deposit Account 12.6% 43.1%
100% 100%
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33.2.1 These investments are made meeting the requirement of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
Employee's Provident Fund Rules, 1996.

33.3 The aggregate amounts incurred during the year for remuneration including all benefits to Chief Executive
Officer, directors and executives of the Investment Bank are:

2018
President &
Ch'ef Executive Directors Total
Executive
Officer
........................ Rupees.......coccevvvivinennnns
Director's meeting fee - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Managerial remuneration 3,337,500 1,561,512 - 4,899,012
Annual allowance 2,057,607 1,378,633 - 3,436,240
Retirment benefits 508,425 109,575 - 618,000
Others 278,125 - - 278,125
Total 6,181,657 3,049,720 2,000,000 11,231,377
2017 (Restated)
President &
Ch'ef Executive Directors Total
Executive
Officer
........................ Rupees........ccoovviinnnnnen

Director's meeting fee - - 2,250,000 2,250,000
Managerial remuneration 6,737,338 2,717,089 - 9,454,427
Annual allowance 281,685 2,183,777 - 2,465,462
Retirment benefits 508,331 2,433,569 - 2,941,900
Others 581,685 - - 581,685
Total 8,109,039 7,334,435 2,250,000 17,693,474

* Comparatives have been amended to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per the Companies

Act, 2017.

provided cars in accordance with the terms of their employment.

33.3.1 In addition, the chief executive officer and executives are provided with free use of Investment Bank
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Note

Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit

Half yearly review
Other services

Out of pocket expenses

Sales tax

TAXATION

Current
Prior
Deferred 11.2

Relationship between tax expense and
accounting profit

Profit before taxation
Tax at applicable rate of 30% (2017: 31%)

Tax calculated at applicable tax rate
Impact of taxability at different rate

Tax effect other than temporary difference
Effect of change in tax rate

Prior year tax adjustment

Tax charge for the year

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
510,000 510,000
200,000 200,000
94,000 40,000
80,037 52,500
884,037 802,500
70,723 60,000
954,760 862,500
3,767,787 2,539,761
(354,739) (211,426)
3,199,264 2,259,615
6,612,312 4,587,950
15,801,936 11,720,048
30% 31%
4,740,581 3,633,215
(357,361) 431,430
5,012,533 3,311,272
(2,428,702) (2,421,541)
(354,739) (211,426)
6,612,312 4,742,950

The income tax assessment of the Investment Bank has been finalized up to the tax year 2017 under

self assessment scheme.

As per management's assessment, sufficient tax provision has been made in the financial statements.
Following are the details of tax provision as per accounts and tax assessment for last 3 years:

Tax year 2017
Tax provision in the accounts 2,328,335
Tax assessment 2,185,022

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after taxation

Weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year

Earnings per share (EPS)

2016 2015
--------- Rupees --—-—-—-—-——--
7,039,088 5,202,367
8,247,342 3,548,244
9,189,624 7,132,098
Number of shares
65,000,000 65,000,000
---------- Rupees ---=-=----
0.14 0.11

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
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2018 2017
Note
Rupees Rupees

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and bank balances 17 209,076,400 219,306,001
Short-term placements 14 430,000,000 464,000,000
Short-term running finance facility 24 (402,137,807) (165,601,569)

236,938,593 517,704,432
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Loans and receivables at amortised cost
Investments 68,772,500 113,781,688
Loans and finances 381,335,082 147,725,594
Net investment in finance lease 1,156,833 1,571,958
Long-term deposits 57,500 57,500
Short-term placements 430,000,000 464,000,000
Markup/interest accrued 59,296,138 59,793,143
Cash and bank balances 209,076,400 219,306,001

Available for sale
Investments

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Loans and receivables at amortised cost

1,149,694,453

85,267,853

1,006,235,884

62,384,239

1,234,962,306

1,068,620,123

Security deposit against finance lease 333,400 333,400
Deferred liability - Staff gratuity 2,430,419 5,807,435
Long-term loan 187,500,000 250,000,000
Short-term running finance 402,137,807 165,601,569
Markup / interest accrued 7,022,701 8,282,205
Accrued and other payables 3,762,617 7,796,853

603,186,944 437,821,462

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Investment Bank's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Investment Bank’s financial performance.

The Investment Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk of the Investment Bank are
being managed by the Investment Bank's management in accordance with the approved policies of the
Investment Bank whereas the board of directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Investment Bank's risk management framework The Investment Bank's overall risk
management programme focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage financial risk
to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.

Risk management is carried out by the Investment Bank's Finance Department under policies approved
by the Board.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of financial instrument may fluctuate
as a result of changes in market prices. The Investment Bank is exposed to market risk as a result of
mismatches or gaps in the amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or re-price
in a given period. The Investment Bank manages this risk by matching the re-pricing of financial assets
and liabilities through risk management strategies.

Market risk mainly comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
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38.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Investment Bank, at present is not exposed to
currency risk as all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

38.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. An entity is exposed to interest rate risk / market rate risk
as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature
or re-price in a given period. The Investment Bank manages this risk by matching the re-pricing of
financial assets and liabilities through risk management strategies.

Financial assets and liabilities include balances of Rs. 1,154.08 million (2017: Rs. 986.75 million) and
Rs. million 592.06 million (2017: Rs. 421.41 million) respectively, which are subject to interest / markup
rate risk. Applicable interest /mark-up rates for financial assets and liabilities have been indicated in
respective notes.

The Investment Bank's exposure to yield / market rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets
and liabilities are summarized as follows:

Exposed to yield / market rate risk

Effective Total Within More than  More than Not exposed
rate one year oneyearand five years to yield /
% less than market
five years rate risk
As at June 30, 2018 Rupees
Financial Assets
Investments 8.73% | 154,040,353 72,984,893| | 62,584,426 - 18,471,034
Loans and finances 7.78% | 381,335,082 29,379,402| 333,097,082 || 16,094,878 2,763,720
Net investment in finance lease 9.09% 1,156,833 509,568 647,265 - -
Long-term deposits 57,500 - - - 57,500
Short-term placements 9% 430,000,000 | | 430,000,000 - - -
Markup / interest accrued 59,296,138 - - - 59,296,138
Cash and bank balance 7% 209,076,400 | | 208,789,997 - 286,403

1,234,962,306 741,663,860 396,328,773 16,094,878 80,874,795

Financial Liabilities

Security deposit against finance lease 333,400 - - - 333,400
Deferred liability - Staff gratuity 8.00% 2,430,419 - 2,430,419 - -
Long-term loans 7.00% | 187,500,000 62,500,000| |125,000,000 - -
Short-term running finance facility 7.04% | 402,137,807 | | 402,137,807 - - -
Markup / interest accrued 7,022,701 - - - 7,022,701
Accrued and other payables 3,762,617 - - - 3,762,617
603,186,944 464,637,807 127,430,419 - 11,118,718
On-balance sheet gap 631,775,362 277,026,053 268,898,354 16,094,878 69,756,077
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Exposed to yield / market rate risk

Effective Total Within More than  More than Not exposed
rate one year oneyearand five years to yield /
% less than market
five years rate risk
Rupees
As at June 30, 2017
Financial Assets
Investments 7.97% | 176,165,927 88,078,805 68,772,500 - 19,314,622
Loans and finances 6.05% | 147,725,594 25,161,133 | |104,080,299 || 16,094,878 2,389,284
Net investment in finance lease 9.09% 1,571,958 421,941 1,150,017 - -
Long-term deposits 57,500 - - - 57,500
Short-term placements 9% 464,000,000 | |464,000,000 - - -
Markup / interest accrued 59,793,143 - - - 59,793,143
Cash and bank balance 7% | 219,306,001 | |218,993,509 - - 312,492

1,068,620,123 796,655,388 174,002,816 16,094,878 81,867,041
Financial Liabilities

Security deposit against finance lease 333,400 - - - 333,400
Deferred liability - Staff gratuity 8.00% 5,807,435 - 5,807,435 - -
Long-term loans 6.88% | 250,000,000 62,500,000 | |187,500,000 - -
Short-term running finance facility 6.96% | 165,601,569 | (165,601,569 - - -
Markup / interest accrued 8,282,205 - - - 8,282,205
Accrued and other payables 7,796,853 - - - 7,796,853
437,821,462 228,101,569 193,307,435 - 16,412,458
On-balance sheet gap 630,798,661 568,553,819  (19,304,619) 16,094,878 65,454,583

38.1.3 Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest/ mark up rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. Presently, daily stock market
fluctuation is controlled by government authorities with cap and floor of 5%. The restriction of floor prices
reduces the volatility of prices of equity and debt securities and the chances of market crush at any
moment. The Investment Bank manages the price risk through diversification and placing limits on
individual and total equity and debt instruments in accordance with NBFC's regulation and internal
investment policy. Reports on the equity and debt portfolio are submitted to the Investment Bank's senior
management on regular basis. The Investment Bank's board of directors reviews and approves all equity
and debt investment decisions. The Investment Bank is exposed to price risk since it has investments
in quoted equity and debt securities amounting to Rs. 69.9 million (2017: 86.7 million).
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The carrying value of investments subject to equity price risk is based on quoted market prices as of
the reporting date. Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realized in the
subsequent sale of an investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Fluctuation
in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying economic
characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investments and general market conditions.
Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity
of the security being sold.

Sensitivity analysis

For the purpose of price risk sensitivity analysis it is observed that the benchmark KSE 100 Index has
decreased by 11.10% during the financial year.

The table below summarizes Investment Bank's equity price risk as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and
shows the effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at the year
end reporting dates. The selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to
be the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results could be worse because of the nature of equity
markets and the aforementioned concentrations existing in Investment Bank's equity and debt investment

portfolio.
Fair value Hypothetical ~Estimated fair value Hypothetical Hypothetical
price change  after hypothetical  increase (decrease) increase (decrease)
change in prices in shareholders' in profit / (loss)
equity after tax
Rupees
June 30, 2018 75,886,310  10% increase 83,474,941 7,588,631 7,588,631
10% decrease 68,297,679 (7,588,631) (7,588,631)
June 30, 2017 86,739,086  10% increase 95,412,995 8,673,909 8,673,909
10% decrease 78,065,177 (8,673,909) (8,673,909)

38.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Investment Bank attempts to control credit risk by monitoring
credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counter parties in various industries
and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet their contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations
of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of an entity's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

The Investment Bank follows two sets of guidelines. It has its own operating policy and the management
of the Investment Bank also adheres to the regulations issued by the SECP. The operating policy defines
the extent of fund and non-fund based exposures with reference to a particular sector or group.

The Investment Bank seeks to manage its credit risk through diversification of financing activities to
avoid undue concentrations of credit risk with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations
or businesses. Its also obtains securities when appropriate. Details of the composition of finance portfolios
of the Investment Bank are given below:
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2018 2017
Rupees % Rupees %

Investment and Finances *
Cement 164,038,889 31.4% 64,349,617 24.10%
Chemical 6,575,917 1.3% 9,913,838 4.60%
Oil and Gas 3,089,870 0.6% 740,700 24.00%
Cable and electrical goods - 0.0% 20,000,000 0.40%
Textile 19,775,349 3.8% 19,775,349 9.70%
Financial institutions 50,185,811 9.6% 41,934,348 28.80%
Construction 6,560,000 1.3% 6,560,000 0.00%
Insurance 915,300 0.2% 930,000 0.20%
Engineering 13,333,332 2.6% - 0.20%
Electricity 2,504,583 0.5% 2,292,158 0.90%
Sugar 193,750,000 37.2% 81,250,000 0.20%
Hotel Industries 22,626,569 4.3% 18,873,804 0.00%
Petroleum 37,500,000 7.2% 47,500,000 0.00%

520,855,620 100% 314,119,814 93%

* Investment and finances are net of provisions.

The credit quality of the Investment Bank's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit
rating as follows:

Banks Rating Agency Rating
Short term Long term
MCB Bank Ltd. PACRA A1+ AAA
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA A1+ AAA
Allied Bank Ltd PACRA A1+ AAA
Khushhali Microfinance Bank JCR-VIS A-1 A+
Tameer Microfinance Bank Limited PACRA A1 A+
NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited PACRA A1 A
FINCA Microfinance Bank JCR-VIS A-1 A
U Microfinance Bank JCR-VIS A-2 A
The First Microfinance Bank JCR-VIS A-1 A+

38.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet the commitments
associated with financial instruments. To safeguard this risk, the Investment Bank has diversified sources
of funds and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash
equivalents and readily marketable securities. The maturity profile of assets and liabilities is monitored
to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. The Investment Bank has the ability to mitigate any short-
term liquidity gaps by disposal of short-term investments and the availability of liquid funds at short
notice.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Investment Bank assets and liabilities. The
contractual maturities of assets and liabilities at the year-end have been determined on the basis of the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the
effective maturities as indicated by the Investment Bank's history and the availability of liquid funds.
Assets and liabilities not having a contractual maturity are assumed to mature on the expected date
on which the assets / liabilities will be realized / settled.
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More than one

Within year and less More than
Total one year than fi five years
an five years
As at June 30, 2018 Rupees
Financial Assets
Investments 154,040,353 114,062,414 39,977,939 -
Loans and finances 381,335,082 29,435,328 | |335,804,876 16,094,878
Net investment in finance lease 1,156,833 509,568 647,265 -
Long-term deposits 57,500 - 57,500 -
Short-term placements 430,000,000 430,000,000 - -
Markup / interest accrued 59,296,138 59,296,138 - -
Cash and bank balance 209,076,400 209,076,400 - -
1,234,962,306 842,379,848 376,487,580 16,094,878
Financial Liabilities
Security deposit against finance lease 333,400 - 333,400 -
Deferred liability - Staff gratuity 2,430,419 - 2,430,419 -
Long-term loans 187,500,000 62,500,000 |125,000,000 -
Short-term running finance facility 402,137,807 402,137,807 - -
Markup / interest accrued 7,022,701 7,022,701 - -
Accrued and other payables 3,762,617 4,128,899 - -
603,186,944 475,789,407 127,763,819 -
On-balance sheet gap 631,775,362 366,590,441 248,723,761 16,094,878
S More than one M th
Total on; y:;r t%ear and less fi\cl)ere eaarz
an five years y
A Rupees
s at June 30, 2017
Financial Assets
Investments 176,165,927 105,219,773 70,946,154 -
Loans and finances 147,725,594 25,217,059 106,413,657 16,094,878
Net investment in finance lease 1,571,958 421,941 1,150,017 -
Long-term deposits 57,500 - 57,500 -
Short-term placements 464,000,000 464,000,000 - -
Markup / interest accrued 59,793,143 59,793,143 - -
Cash and bank balance 219,306,001 219,306,001 - -
1,068,620,123 873,957,917 178,567,328 16,094,878
Financial Liabilities
Security deposit against finance lease 333,400 - 333,400 -
Deferred liability - Staff gratuity 5,807,435 - 5,807,435 -
Long-term loans 250,000,000 62,500,000( (187,500,000 -
Short-term running finance facility 165,601,569 165,601,569 - -
Markup / interest accrued 8,282,205 8,282,205 - -
Accrued and other payables 7,796,853 7,796,853 - -
437,821,462 244,180,627 193,640,835 -
On-balance sheet gap 630,798,661 629,777,290  (15,073,507) 16,094,878
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39 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Investment Bank ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it could continue to provide adequate returns to shareholders by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk. It is the policy of the Investment Bank to maintain a
strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders' return is also recognized
and the Investment Bank recognizes the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that
might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position. The capital structure of the Investment Bank consist of equity comprising issued share capital,
statutory reserves and un-appropriated profits.

Goals of managing capital
The goals of managing capital of the Investment Bank are as follows:

To be an appropriately capitalized institution, as defined by regulatory authorities and comparable to
the peers;

Maintain strong ratings and to protect against unexpected events;

Availability of adequate capital at a reasonable cost so as to expand and achieve low overall cost of
capital with appropriate mix of capital elements.

The NBFC's & NE's Regulations 2008 issued by SECP prescribed the minimum equity requirements
for NBFCs licensed by the Commission to undertake different form of business.

40  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of all financial instruments as at year end are based on the valuation methodology
outlined below:

a) Finance and certificates of deposit
For all finances (including certificates of deposit) the fair values have been taken at carrying amounts
as these are not considered materially different from their fair values based on the current yields /
market rates and re-pricing profits of similar finance and deposit portfolios.

b) Investments
The fair values of quoted investments are based on quoted market prices. Unquoted investments,

except where an active market exists, are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any, which
approximates their fair value in the absence of an active market.
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The Investment Bank uses following fair value hierarchy that reflects significance of inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1 -  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 -  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 -  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
------------------ Rupees -------=-====-----
Listed securities 99,613,512 - -
Unlisted securities - 11,357,224 -
99,613,512 11,357,224 -
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
------------------ Rupees --------------—---
Listed securities 19,314,622 67,424,464 -

Unlisted securities

19,314,622 67,424,464 -

c) Other financial instruments

The fair values of all other financial instruments are considered to approximate their carrying
amounts.

41 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, key management personnel and retirement
benefit schemes. The Investment Bank in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties. Amounts due from and to associated undertakings, executives and remuneration
of directors and executives are disclosed in the relevant notes. Transactions with related parties are

as follows:
Associated Undertakings Note AL 2017
Rupees Rupees
Transactions during the year
National Bank of Pakistan
(NBP holds 30.77% of FCIBL Shares)
Mark-up on repo transactions - 1,831,500
Mark-up on long-term loan 32 15,762,629 16,146,987
Mark-up on running finance 32 3,110,957 -
Capital gain on listed securities - 305,680
Dividend income - 375,000
Rent paid 4,182,310 3,318,220
Taurus Securities Limited
(NBP holds 58.32% of Taurus Securities Limited Shares)
Brokerage expense 3,250 -
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Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Balance at year end
National Bank of Pakistan
(NBP holds 30.77% of FCIBL Shares)
Investment in shares at cost 13.2 3,858,395 2,636,346
Long-term loan 22.1 187,500,000 250,000,000
Short term running finance 24.2 99,999,951 -
NAFA Stock Fund 13.3 25,000,000 -
(NBP holds 54% shares of NBP Fund Management
Limited - Management Company of the Fund)
Key Management Personnel
Salaries, benefits and other allowances 33.3 8,953,252 16,826,206
Retirement benefits 3383 618,000 1,193,067
Return on long-term loans 34,800 65,440
Balance at year end 3,983,301 3,105,959
Staff Retirement Plans
Contribution to staff retirement Plans 33.1 500,623 547,601
Numbers
42 EMPLOYEES
Employees at the end of the year 18 15
Average employees during the year 17 18

43 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.
44 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements was authorized for issue on September 29, 2018 by the Board of Directors
of the Investment Bank.

Cottotr (- v

MUHAMMAD AMIN KHATRI MUHAMMAD MOHSIN ALI MUHAMMAD NAEEMUDDIN
Chief Financial Officer President & CEO Director
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Number of Shareholding Total number of Percentage
Shareholders From To Shares held %
282 1 100 6,471 0.0100
552 101 500 258,070 0.3970
74 501 1,000 70,722 0.1088
50 1,001 5,000 121,910 0.1876
8 5,001 10,000 62,000 0.0954
4 10,001 15,000 48,500 0.0746
1 25,001 30,000 29,000 0.0446
1 30,001 35,000 34,500 0.0531
1 70,001 75,000 72,500 0.1115
1 95,001 100,000 98,000 0.1508
1 4,800,001 4,805,000 4,801,703 7.3872
1 6,605,001 6,610,000 6,606,246 10.1635
1 12,790,001 12,795,000 12,790,378 19.6775
2 19,995,001 20,000,000 40,000,000 61.5385
979 65,000,000 100.0000
The Slabs representing nil holding have been omitted
Categolieees Number Shares Held Percentage
Shareholders g
Directors / Chief Executive 4 3,000 0.0047%
Associated companies, undertakings
& related parties 5 64,198,327 98.7667%
General Public
Local 963 782,436 1.2037%
Foreign 4 11,237 0.0173%
Others 3 5,000 0.0077%
Total 979 65,000,000 100.0000%
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS REQUIRED
UNDER THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Categories of Number of Shares Percentage
Shareholders Shareholders Held %

Associated Companies, Undertakings
Related Parties Sponsors & Acquirers

National Bank of Pakistan 1 20,000,000 30.7692%
Water and Power Development Authority 1 20,000,000 30.7692%
Sardar Mohammad Ashraf D. Baluch
& Co. (Pvt.) Ltd. 1 12,790,378 19.6775%
Lilley International (Pvt.) Ltd. 1 6,606,246 10.1635%
Sardar Mohammad Ashraf D. Baluch
(Pvt.) Ltd. 1 4,801,703 7.3872%
5 64,198,327 98.7666%
Mutual Fund
NIT and ICP

Directors, Chief Executive and
their spouses and minor children

Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin 1 500 0.0008%
Mr. Muhammad Igbal Hussain 1 500 0.0008%
Mr. Muhammad Ameen 1 500 0.0008%
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Ali 1 1,500 0.0023%
Executives
Public Sector Companies & Corporation
Banks, Development Finance Institutions
Non-Banking Companies and Mutual Funds
General Public 967 793,673 1.2210%
Others 3 5,000 0.0077%
Total 979 65,000,000 100.0000%
Shareholders holding 5%

or more voting interest
National Bank of Pakistan 1 20,000,000 30.7692%
Water & Power Development Authority

(WAPDA) 1 20,000,000 30.7692%
Sardar Mohammad Ashraf D. Baluch &

Co. (Pvt.) Ltd. 1 12,790,378 19.6775%
Lilley International (Pvt.) Limited 1 6,606,246 10.1635%
Sardar Mohammad Ashraf D. Baluch (Pvt.) Ltd. 1 4,801,703 7.3872%

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary

First Credit and Investment Bank Ltd.
2nd Floor, Sidco Avenue Centre,
Stratchen Road,

Karachi -74200

Pakistan.
I/We
(name)
of being member(s)
(address)
of First Credit and Investment Bank Ltd. and holder of Ordinary
(number of shares)
Shares as per Share Registered FolioNo.__and/or CDC Participant .D No.
and Sub Account No. hereby appoint of
(name)
or failing him/her

(address) (name)

of as my proxy to vote

(address)
for me and on my behalf at the Annual General meeting of the company to be held on Friday,
October 26, 2018 at 05:30 p.m. at PIIA (Pakistan Institute of International Affairs) Auditorium, Aiwan-e-Saddar
Road, Karachi.

Signed this dayof __ 2018.

1. Witness:
Signature

Name
Address Signature on

. Rs. 5/-
Signature R St
CNIC or evenue Stamp

Passport #

(Signature should agree with the
specimen registered with

2. Witness: the Company)

Signature
Name
Address

CNIC or
Passport #

IMPORTANT:

® |n order to be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of our Registrar THK Associates
(Pvt.) Limited, 40-C, First Floor, Block-6, PECHS, Karachi-75400 not later than 48 hours before the meeting
duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two persons with their signatures, names, address and CNIC
numbers given on the form.

® |n the case of individuals attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall
be furnished with the proxy form.

® |nthe case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors Resolution / power of attorney and attested
copy CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted alongwith proxy form.

®  Proxy shall authenticate his / her identity by showing his / her original national identity card or original
passport and bring folio number at the time of attending the meeting.

First Credit And INvestment Bank L1d.
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Registrar:
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited
40-C, First Floor, Block-6,
PECHS, Karachi-75400.
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Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapunji.pk

Key features:

@3 Licensed Entities Verification 4 Stock trading simulator
L SEA malere (based on live feed from KSE)

» [ Knowledge center
™ Jamapunji games®

B Risk profiler*
@ Tax credit calculator® ; :
By Financial calculator

S SoEnEN tiination g Subscription to Alerts (event

B Insurance & Investment Checklist notifications, corporate and
requlatory aclions)

n Jamapunji application for
mobile device

P Online Quizzes

»? FAQs Answered
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